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As management of the Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County (Authority), we offer readers of the 
Authority's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial performance of the 
Authority for the year ended March 31, 2018.  Please read this Management's Discussion and Analysis in 
conjunction with the financial statements to obtain a thorough understanding of the Authority’s financial 
condition at March 31, 2018.  
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Authority’s basic financial statements are comprised of:  1) statement of net position, 2) statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position, 3) statement of cash flows, and 4) notes to the financial 
statements.  This report also includes required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 
 
The Authority’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).   
 
These financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority's finances.  The 
statements are presented in a manner similar to private-sector businesses.  
 

Statement of Net Position 
 

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the Authority.  This statement provides 
information about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the 
Authority’s creditors (liabilities).  It presents information on all of the Authority’s assets plus deferred 
outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources to arrive at net position.  Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial condition of the 
Authority is improving or deteriorating. 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing how the 
Authority’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.  This statement measures the success of 
the Authority’s operations over the last year and can be used to determine whether the Authority has 
successfully recovered all of its costs through its user fees.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as 
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  
Revenues are recognized when earned, not when they are received.  Expenses are recognized when incurred, 
not when they are paid.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., changes in net pension liability, OPEB and 
compensated absences). 
 

Statement of Cash Flows 
 

The statement of cash flows presents and reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash 
resulting from operations, investing and financing activities.  This statement provides answers to such 
questions as where did cash come from, what was the cash used for and what was the change in the cash 
balance during the reporting period.  
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to obtain a full understanding of the data provided in 
the Authority’s financial statements. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY  
 

Financial Highlights 
 
•  The total assets of the Authority at March 31, 2018 are $806,490,327.  This represents an  increase in total 

assets of $19,080,356 from March 31, 2017.  Total assets consist of current assets of $39,495,305 (increase 
of $1,104,926), property, plant and equipment of $510,067,669 (increase of $37,571,040) and non-current 
assets of $256,927,353 (decrease of $19,595,610).  

•  The Authority's cash and cash equivalents balance at March 31, 2018 was $19,209,356 which represents an 
increase of $4,141,491 from March 31, 2017.  

•  The total liabilities of the Authority at March 31, 2018 are $651,548,637.  Total liabilities of the Authority 
 decreased $ 1,361,013 from March 31, 2017.  The total liabilities consist of the Authority's current liabilities 
of $28,211,231 (decrease of $569,472) and non-current liabilities of $623,337,406 (decrease of $791,541).  

•  The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Authority exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows 
of resources at March 31, 2018 by $158,419,154 (net position).  This represents an increase in net position 
of $22,461,496 from March 31, 2017.  The net position of the Authority includes the amount of net 
investment in capital assets of $106,209,322 (increase of $9,118,160), restricted net position of $19,527,513 
(decrease of $333,276) and unrestricted net position of $32,682,319 (increase of $13,676,612).  

•  The Authority had operating revenues of $100,067,499 (increase of $5,647,414) and operating expenses of 
$78,534,639 (increase of $4,711,191) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018. 

•  The Authority had net non-operating expenses of  $12,471,691 (decrease of $635,514) for the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2018.  

•  The Authority recorded capital contributions of $13,400,327 which represents a decrease of $32,402 from 
March 31, 2017.  

 
Financial Analysis 
 
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.  In the case of the 
Authority, assets plus deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by 
$158,419,154 at March 31, 2018.  
 
The largest portion of the Authority's assets, 63%, reflects capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation (e.g. 
distribution system, treatment plants, pumping stations).  The Authority uses these capital assets to provide 
services to its customers.  
 
During the current fiscal year ending March 31, 2018, the capital assets of the Authority increased by 
$37,571,040.  Operating revenue increased by $5,647,414, due to increased rates and the addition of 
Hempfield sewage customers from the acquisition during fiscal year 2017.  Operating expenses increased by 
$4,711,191 due mostly to increased health insurance costs, depreciation, and additional costs related to the 
new facilities and operations acquired during fiscal year 2017.  A loss on dispositions of property was 
recognized in the current year of $336,175 compared to a loss of $1,732,987 in the prior year. 
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Condensed financial information as of and for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 
 

Condensed Statement of Net Position
Current assets $ 39,495,305     $ 38,390,379     
Property, plant and equipment 510,067,669   472,496,629   
Non-current assets 256,927,353   276,522,963   

Total assets 806,490,327   787,409,971   

Deferred outflows of resources 5,570,562 1,480,014

Current liabilities 28,211,231     28,780,703     
Non-current liabilities 623,337,406   624,128,947   

Total liabilities 651,548,637   652,909,650   

Deferred inflows of resources 2,093,098 22,677

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 106,209,322 97,091,162
Restricted 19,527,513 19,860,789
Unrestricted 32,682,319 19,005,707

Total net position $ 158,419,154 $ 135,957,658

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Operating revenues $ 100,067,499   $ 94,420,085     
Operating expenses 78,534,639     73,823,448     

Operating income 21,532,860     20,596,637     

Non-operating revenues (expenses) (12,471,691)    (13,107,205)    

Capital contributions 13,400,327     13,432,729     

Increase (decrease) in net position $ 22,461,496     $ 20,922,161     

2018 2017

 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Debt Administration 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment  
 
As of March 31, 2018, the Authority's capital assets amounted to $510,067,669 (net of accumulated 
depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes distribution system, water and wastewater treatment 
plants, pumping stations, water storage facilities, sewage collection systems, equipment, vehicles, land 
improvements, buildings and building improvements.  Additional information on the Authority's capital assets 
can be found in Note 2 of the notes to the financial statements.  
 
Long-Term Debt  
 
As of March 31, 2018, the Authority has outstanding long-term debt and capital leases, net of premiums and 
discounts, of $530,963,398 and $15,435,576 of debt that is due and payable within one year. 
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Review of Operations 
 
The largest component of the total operating expense of the Authority is employee costs.  These expenditures 
consist of wages and fringe benefits.  The Authority currently has a five year agreement with the bargaining 
unit that expires on October 14, 2022.   
 
The Authority has an agreement in effect with Resource Development and Management, Inc. to manage the 
Authority, initially, for a fourteen year period.  The agreement was effective February 1, 2000 and was last 
amended on November 18, 2015.  The amended agreement provides for a fixed annual management fee of 
$1,300,000 annually for 2018 through 2020, and $1,500,000 annually for 2021 through 2025.  This agreement 
will allow the Authority to control administrative costs.  

 
In May 2013, the Authority issued $132,110,000 of 2013 Series Municipal Service Bonds.  The Bonds were 
issued for financing a five year Capital Projects plan established in September 2012 for improvements to 
distribution systems, upgrades to meters, maintenance to main distribution lines and other improvements and 
repairs.  The Capital Projects plan began in 2013 and is expected to continue through 2018. 
 
In July 2016, the Authority approved the purchase of the Hempfield Township Municipal Authority for a total 
cost of approximately $67,000,000.  This acquisition included $35,000,000 in cash, $5,000,000 paid up front 
and $30,000,000 to be paid over 20 years and approximately $32,000,000 of debt.  This acquisition increased 
the Authority’s customer base approximately 14,000 sewer customers.   
 
In August 2016, the Authority issued $184,475,000 of Municipal Service Revenue Bonds, Series of 2016, to 
refund the 2006 Series A Revenue Bonds and to finance a $150,894,500 Capital Projects plan. 
 
In December 2017, the Authority issued $137,375,000 of Municipal Service Revenue Bonds, Series of 2017, 
to advance refund a portion of the 2013 Series Revenue Bonds. 
 
Request for Information 
 
The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances for all those with an 
interest.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to the Business Manager, Municipal Authority of Westmoreland 
County, PO Box 730, Greensburg, PA 15601. 
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Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted (Note 3) $ 19,209,356       $ 15,067,865       
Accounts receivable, customers (net of allowance for doubtful

accounts of $470,533 in 2018 and $458,506 in 2017) 6,298,373         5,597,012
Unbilled water and sewer service 9,851,714         9,777,602         
Surcharges receivable, current portion 350,000            350,000            
Other receivables 1,070,190 5,178,590
Inventory - material and supplies 2,515,551         2,289,998         
Prepaid expenses 200,121            129,312            

Total Current Assets 39,495,305       38,390,379       

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment (Note 2) 711,563,565     662,320,792     
Less: accumulated depreciation (201,495,896)   (189,824,163)   

Property, Plant and Equipment, net 510,067,669     472,496,629     

Non-Current Assets
Surcharges receivable, net of current portion and allowance for 1,653,673         1,959,138         

doubtful accounts of $200,000 in 2018 and 2017
Prepaid bond insurance 958,845 596,655            
Restricted assets:

Special funds held by trustee (Note 4 & 5) 234,717,525     254,963,842     
Restricted cash held by authority (Note 6) 19,597,310       19,003,328       

Total Non-Current Assets 256,927,353     276,522,963     

Total Assets 806,490,327     787,409,971     

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments -                   170,728
Changes in assumptions related to pensions 77,283 -                   
Difference between expected and actual experience

related to pensions 825,024 104,074
Contribution to pension plan subsequent to measurement date 56,041 -                   
Deferred losses on bond refundings, net of amortization (Note 8) 4,612,214 1,205,212

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,570,562         1,480,014         

2018 2017

 
(continued) 
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(continued) 

Current Liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) $ 15,341,538 $ 11,200,224
Accounts payable 5,667,970 10,183,429
Customer service deposits 1,431,995 1,518,570
Escrow liabilities 219,448 235,196            
Accrued compensation 2,658,563 2,570,619
Accrued interest 2,029,064 2,077,313
Capital lease obligation, current (Note 9) 94,038 90,591
Other accrued liabilities 523,224 752,443
Accrued pension 245,391 152,318

Total Current Liabilities 28,211,231       28,780,703       

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion and 

unamortized premiums and discounts (Note 8) 530,677,061 535,005,046
Capital lease obligation, non-current (Note 9) 286,337 380,375
Accrued landfill closure costs (Note 10) 425,100 485,348
Advances for construction (Note 7) 3,771,730 4,035,951
Accrued other post-employment benefits (Note 15) 55,633,148 49,089,104
Net pension liability (Note 12) 32,544,030 35,133,123

Total Non-Current Liabilities 623,337,406     624,128,947     

Total Liabilities 651,548,637     652,909,650     

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 1,485,427 -                   
Changes in assumptions related to pensions -                   3,307                
Deferred revenues 590,919 -                   
Deferred gains on bond refundings, net of amortization 16,752 19,370

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,093,098         22,677              

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 106,209,322 97,091,162
Restricted 19,527,513 19,860,789
Unrestricted 32,682,319       19,005,707       

Total Net Position $ 158,419,154   $ 135,957,658   

2018 2017
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Operating Revenues
Water $ 81,638,410       $ 77,440,502       
Wastewater 14,901,786       14,121,562       
Other operating revenues 3,527,303         2,858,021         

Total Operating Revenues 100,067,499     94,420,085       

Operating Expenses
Source of supply 865,364            861,886            
Treatment system 8,002,831         8,006,826         
Distribution 17,775,014       17,459,687       
Engineering 1,307,465         1,271,392         
Wastewater system 8,509,813         7,632,386         
Landfill 43,367              12,005              
Depreciation and amortization 12,577,264       11,562,121       
Commercial and general 28,228,521       25,817,145
Management fee 1,225,000         1,200,000         

Total Operating Expenses 78,534,639       73,823,448       

Operating Income Before Non-Operating Revenues 21,532,860       20,596,637       

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 3,535,070         3,225,914         
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments (407,750)          431,964            
Interest expense (15,262,836)     (15,032,096)     
Loss on disposals of property (336,175)          (1,732,987)       

Total Non-Operating Expenses (12,471,691)     (13,107,205)     

Income Before Capital Contributions 9,061,169         7,489,432         

Capital Contributions 13,400,327       13,432,729       

Increase in Net Position 22,461,496       20,922,161       

Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 135,957,658     115,035,497

Total Net Position, End of Year $ 158,419,154   $ 135,957,658   

2018 2017
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 99,780,621       $ 91,960,973       
Cash payments to employees (22,902,975)     (20,981,812)     
Cash payments to suppliers, vendors and professional services (37,489,409)     (36,515,309)     

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 39,388,237       34,463,852       

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Net proceeds from issuance of debt 965,982            219,429,715     
Net proceeds from issuance of advanced refunding bond 149,382,485     -                   
Payments to advance refund bond (150,370,928)   -                   
Acquisition, construction, and improvement of capital assets (57,882,499)     (42,266,406)     
Principal paid on long term-debt (11,384,395)     (74,339,566)     
Interest and bond issuance costs paid (6,868,392)       (9,087,820)       
Cash paid for bond insurance (414,707)          (596,655)          
Cash payments received on surcharges receivable 305,465            172,575            
Capital contributions 17,244,506       7,275,711         

Net Cash Provided By (Used in) Capital and  
Related Financing Activities (59,022,483)     100,587,554     

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Earnings on investments 2,474,826         1,986,419         
Purchases of investments (196,966,384)   (254,208,910)   
Redemption of investments 218,267,295     121,657,053     

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Investing Activities 23,775,737       (130,565,438)   

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,141,491         4,485,968         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 15,067,865       10,581,897

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 19,209,356     $ 15,067,865     

2018 2017

 
 

(continued) 
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(continued) 
 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities

Operating income $ 21,532,860       $ 20,596,637       
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 12,577,264       11,562,121       
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts 12,027              279,506            
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable, customers (713,388)          (1,167,047)       
Unbilled water and sewer service (74,112)            (1,384,394)       
Inventory (225,553)          (187,246)          
Prepaid expenses (25,291)            (77,873)            

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 1,170,759         208,261            
Customer service deposits (86,575)            (137,610)          
Escrow liabilities (15,748)            (49,567)            
Accrued compensation 87,944              302,808            
Accrued liabilities (229,219)          58,624              
Accrued pension 93,073              121,452            
Accrued landfill costs (60,248)            (26,883)            
Accrued other post employment benefits 6,544,044         5,157,296         
Deferred revenues 590,919            -                   
Net pension liability (1,790,519)       (792,233)          

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 39,388,237     $ 34,463,852     

2018 2017

 
Supplemental Disclosures 

 
Accounting Policies 
 
For the purposes of this statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and interest bearing demand 
deposits that are not restricted for specific uses by external parties.   
 
Non-Cash Capital and Related Financing Activities 
 
As of March 31, 2018 and 2017, $534,903 and $6,221,121, respectively, has been included in accounts payable 
for ongoing construction projects. 
 
During fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, the Authority acquired The Hempfield Township Municipal Authority.  
As part of this acquisition, the Authority acquired $24,728,943 of liabilities, $24,291,305 of capital assets and 
$27,900,312 of other assets.   
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NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION 
 
The Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County (Authority) was incorporated as a public corporation 
of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania on April 15, 1942, organized under the Act of Assembly approved 
June 28, 1935, P.L. 463 as amended and supplemented by the Municipal Authorities Act of 1945 which 
has been repealed by Act 22 which was signed into law on June 19, 2001, and merged into the 
Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes, Title 53, Chapter 56.  The Authority is organized for the purpose of 
providing municipal services, principally consisting of operation of a water collection, treatment, and 
distribution system.  The Authority also maintains a nonoperation landfill in Loyalhanna Township, 
Westmoreland County.  On April 1, 2001, the Authority entered the wastewater business through the 
purchase of the assets of the Municipal Authority of the Borough of Avonmore.  The Authority 
subsequently purchased a portion of the wastewater system of the Ligonier Township Municipal 
Authority on December 29, 2006, the wastewater system of the Borough of White Oak on January 8, 
2007, the assets of the Smithton I-70 Industrial Park Wastewater System from the Westmoreland County 
Industrial Park Authority on March 1, 2011, the Jeannette Municipal Authority on April 13, 2015, the 
Youngwood Borough Authority on February 4, 2016, and the Hempfield Township Municipal Authority 
on July 25, 2016.   
 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Reporting Entity 
 
In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), component units are legally 
separate organizations for which the Authority is financially accountable.  The Authority is financially 
accountable for an organization if the Authority appoints a voting majority of the organization’s 
governing body and 1) the Authority is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed 
or provided by the organization, 2) the Authority is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the 
organization’s resources; the Authority is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to 
finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization, or the Authority is obligated for 
the debt of the organization.  Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent 
on the Authority or that the Authority approves the budget or the issuance of debt.   
 
Based on the foregoing criteria, the Authority has determined that no organizations are controlled by or 
dependent on the Authority during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018 or 2017.  

 
The Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County is not included as a component unit on the financial 
statements of the County of Westmoreland.  

 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
  
For financial reporting purposes, the Authority is considered a special-purpose government engaged only 
in business-type activities.  Accordingly, the Authority’s financial statements have been presented using 
the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis, 
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

The financial statements of the Authority are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  The Authority’s reporting entity applies all relevant 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.  The Authority reports in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.  The purpose of this Statement is to 
incorporate information from the GASB’s authoritative literature, FASB Statements and Interpretations, 
APB Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the AICPA Committee on Accounting Procedure 
issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements.   
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with the proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of 
the Authority are charges to customers for sales and services and royalty income.  Operating expenses 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

 
Basis of Accounting  
 
The accrual basis of accounting was used to prepare the accompanying comparative financial statements.  
The significant accounting policies followed by the Authority in preparation of the accompanying 
comparative financial statements are described as follows: 
 
Revenues and Expenses 
 
Revenues from customers are recognized when earned, regardless of the period of collection subsequent 
to year end.  Federal, state, and local grants in aid are recognized as revenues when the grants are earned.  
However, intergovernmental grants are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agency.  Grant 
revenues received for expenses which are disallowed are repayable to the grantor. Royalty income is 
recognized as revenue when earned and is included in “Other operating revenues.”  Investment income is 
recognized as revenue when earned.  Expenses and interest costs are recognized when incurred. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Authority is authorized to invest in U.S. Treasury Bills (short-term obligations of the Federal 
Government) and time deposits of insured institutions.  The Authority considers all investments with a 
maturity date of three months or less and are not restricted for specific uses by external parties to be cash 
equivalents.  
 
Receivables  
 
The customer receivable balance presented in the accompanying statements of net position is recorded at 
net realizable value.  The Authority has established an allowance for doubtful accounts for the fiscal years 
ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 of $470,533 and $458,506, respectively.  Unbilled water and sewer 
service represents the estimated customer receivables from the date of their last billing to the end of the 
fiscal year.   
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Basis of Accounting (continued) 
 
Inventory 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market (net realizable value) and consist of 
replacement parts, supplies and meters.  Market is determined based on net realizable value and 
appropriate consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive levels, deterioration and other factors in 
evaluating net realizable value.   
 
Prepaid Expenses 
 
Prepaid expenses consist of prepaid insurance, other miscellaneous expenses and refundable deposits. 
 
Property, Plant, and Equipment 
 
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
asset lives are not capitalized.  
 
The capital assets of the Authority are depreciated using the straight line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the asset as follows.  No depreciation expense is recorded for land or construction-in-progress.   
 

Treatment plants 40-50 years 
Sewage plants and systems 4-88 years 
Pumping stations 40-99 years 
Dams, reservoirs, and tanks 40-50 years 
Distribution systems, meters, and hydrants  20-99 years 
Equipment 5-10 years 
Autos and trucks  4 years 
Office buildings and improvements  40 years 
Office furniture  4-10 years 
Landfills  10-30 years 
Intangible assets  30 years 
Miscellaneous  1-5 years   

 
In January of 2010, the Authority entered into a $2,557,949 Water Storage Agreement with the 
Department of the Army, represented by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Pittsburgh District, for the 
use of storage of water in the Youghiogheny River Lake, Pennsylvania.  The agreement went into effect 
April 1, 2010 and gives the Authority the right to utilize an undivided percentage of usable storage 
space and allows for the renegotiation of the agreement for the purchase of additional storage space.  
The Authority recognized an intangible asset for the acquisition of the water storage rights.  The asset is 
being amortized over 30 years in an amount equal to the scheduled amortization of the original note 
issued to purchase the rights.  As of March 31, 2018, and 2017, the net balance of the intangible asset 
was $2,000,334 and $2,059,605, respectively. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
 Property, Plant, and Equipment (continued) 
 
The following is a summary of property, plant and equipment transactions for the fiscal year ended  
March 31, 2018:  
 

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 3,649,001      $ -               $ -             $ 136,993       $ 3,785,994      
Land improvements 421,721         -               -             -               421,721         
Construction in progress 29,877,002    38,563,604  -             (40,499,085) 27,941,521    

Subtotal 33,947,724    38,563,604  -             (40,362,092) 32,149,236    

Capital assets being depreciated
Treatment plants 104,696,508  2,127,416    -             770,474       107,594,398  
Sewage plants and systems 46,906,159    548,077       -             8,595,153    56,049,389    
Pumping stations 96,758,615    225,184       -             4,405,768    101,389,567  
Dams, reservoirs, and tanks 44,973,557    1,498,326    -             3,357,563    49,829,446    
Distribution systems, meters, 

and hydrants 293,802,831  5,752,401    993,960     22,002,293  320,563,565  
Equipment 6,232,895      202,975       -             -               6,435,870      
Autos and trucks 7,947,930      1,020,998    275,274     -               8,693,654      
Office buildings and 

improvements 17,028,120    240,305       -             -               17,268,425    
Office furniture 3,895,386      281,099       475,829       4,652,314      
Landfills 3,061,057      -               -             -               3,061,057      
Intangible assets 2,557,949      -               -             -               2,557,949      
Miscellaneous 512,061         51,622         -             755,012       1,318,695      

Subtotal 628,373,068  11,948,403  1,269,234  40,362,092  679,414,329  

Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization (189,824,163) (12,577,264) (905,531)    -               (201,495,896) 

Net, capital assets being depreciated 438,548,905  477,918,433  

Total capital assets - 
net of depreciation $ 472,496,629  $ 37,934,743  $ 363,703     $ -                   $ 510,067,669  

Disposals March 31, 2018
Balance
Ending

March 31, 2017

Beginning
Balance

Additions Transfers

 
Depreciation and amortization expense for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 was $12,577,264 and 
$11,562,121, respectively. 
 
Construction in progress is capitalized and depreciated as projects are completed.  
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Investments, Restricted Assets and Fair Value Measurements 
 
Investments are recorded at fair value, net asset value or amortized cost in accordance with GASB.  
Investments consist of certificates of deposit, bonds, repurchase agreements, investment contracts or other 
short-term investments.  The Authority complies with the investment guidelines set forth by the 
Pennsylvania Municipal Authorities Act. 
 
The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure 
the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
 
The Authority has the following recurring fair value measurements as of March 31, 2018 and 2017: 
 

 Direct obligations of the USA and FHLMCs and FNMAs, included in special funds held by 
trustee, are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs) 

 Repurchase agreements, included in special funds held by trustee, and certificates of deposit, 
included in restricted cash held by the authority, are valued based on the cost of the investment 
plus interest receivable at the stated interest rate (Level 2 inputs) 

 Investment Contract, included in special funds held by trustee, is valued based on the effective 
interest rate in consideration of the original investment amount and the contracted payments 
receivable (Level 3 inputs) 
 

Below is a summary of the values of investments measured at fair value as of March 31: 
 

Direct obligations of the USA $ 16,162,510 $ 12,697,932
FHLMCs and FNMAs 18,726,922 32,320,327
Repurchase Agreements 162,097,004 174,560,118
Certificates of Deposit 4,438,862 -                
Investment Contract 34,507,293 32,305,907

Total Investments Measured at Fair Value $ 235,932,591 $ 251,884,284 

2018 2017

 
 
Money market funds totaling $3,239,950 and $3,079,560 at March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, 
included in special funds held by trustee and cash and cash equivalents, are valued at net asset value per 
share as provided by GASB Statement No. 72.  The funds are invested in U.S. Government and U.S. 
Treasury securities, including bills, bonds, notes and repurchase agreements.  The fund seeks maximum 
current income consistent with preserving capital and maintaining daily liquidity.  There are no 
restrictions on withdrawals and no deposit requirements.   
 
PLGIT and PA Invest accounts totaling $5,905,494 and $5,836,123 at March 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively, included in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash held by the Authority, are valued at 
amortized cost as provided by GASB Statement No. 72.  These funds invest in federal obligations, 
repurchase agreements secured by United States Government Obligations or other debt instruments 
authorized by Commonwealth of Pennsylvania statute.  The funds seek current income while preserving 
capital.  There are no restrictions on withdrawals and no deposit requirements. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Pension Plan for the Employees of the Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County (MAWC Pension 
Plan) and the Jeannette Municipal Authority Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement Systems Pension Plan 
(PMRS), as acquired and frozen on April 13, 2015, and additions to/deductions from these plan’s 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans.  For this 
purpose, benefits (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.   
 
Deferred Revenues 
 
During fiscal year ended March 31, 2018, the Authority sold future lease revenues for $634,605.  The 
revenues sold had non-cancellable contracts through August 2021 and September 2022, with a present 
value of the measurable future revenues estimated to be $193,915.  In accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, the Authority recorded deferred inflows of resources related to the sale of future 
revenues, and will amortize the income over the remaining non-cancellable periods of the leases, based on 
the lease terms in place at the time of the sale.  The purchaser has the option to continue to receive future 
lease payments for up to 50 years, without additional consideration.  During the fiscal year ended March 
31, 2018, $43,686 was included in “Other operating revenues” related to the sale of future revenues.   
 
Contributed Capital 
 
Current year grants in aid and other contributed capital are accounted for as "other sources of funds" and 
are reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position as Capital 
Contributions. 
 
Capitalized Interest 
 
The Authority capitalizes interest based on the criteria outlined in GASB Statement No. 62 which applies 
to taxable borrowings and tax-exempt non-project specific debt.  The objective is to obtain a measure of 
the acquisition cost that more closely reflects the Authority’s total investment in the asset and to charge a 
cost that relates to the acquisition of a resource that will benefit future periods against revenues of the 
periods benefited.  The amount to be capitalized is the amount of interest expense that could have been 
avoided during the asset’s acquisition period if the asset had not been acquired.  
 
Interest on long-term debt used for acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalized during the construction period.  Total interest charged to expense for the fiscal years ended 
March 31, 2018 and 2017, was  $15,262,836 and $15,032,096, respectively.  Total interest expense 
capitalized for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 was $7,485,753 and $3,314,800, 
respectively.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 62, $1,094,238 and $826,080 of interest income 
earned during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, was also capitalized and 
offset the capitalized interest expense, leading to net capitalized interest of $6,391,515 and $2,488,720, 
respectively.   
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Restricted Resources 
 
It is the Authority's practice to first apply restricted resources when  an expense is incurred for purposes 
for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are  available.  
 
Net Position 
 
The financial statements utilize a net position presentation.  Net position is categorized as follows: 
 

Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by any debt outstanding, net of unspent proceeds, related 
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
 
Restricted – This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net position use 
through external restrictions.  
 
Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the 
definition of net investment in capital assets and restricted. 

 
Use of Estimates  
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results may differ from 
those estimates.  
 
Pending Pronouncements 
 
GASB has issued the following statements that will become effective in future years as shown below. 
Management has not yet determined the impact of these statements on the Authority’s financial 
statements: 
 
GASB Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions,” effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017 (the Authority’s financial statements 
for the year ending March 31, 2019). This statement addresses reporting by governments that provide 
OPEB to their employees and for governments that finance OPEB for employees of other governments. 
This statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 45.   
 
GASB Statement No. 84, “Fiduciary Activities,” effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2018 (the Authority’s financial statements for the year ending March 31, 2020), with early application 
encouraged.  This statement will require the Authority to report and present the pension trust fund as a 
fiduciary fund in the financial statements.  Currently, financial statements of business-type activities were 
not required to present fiduciary funds in the financial statements.  The Authority will present a Statement 
of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position as part of its financial 
statements upon implementation of the pronouncement. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Pending Pronouncements (continued) 
 
GASB Statement No. 89, “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period,” effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019 (the Authority’s financial 
statements for the year ending March 31, 2021), with early application encouraged.  This statement will 
change the accounting for interest costs incurred on debt used to fund capital projects.  Currently, the 
Authority capitalizes a portion of these interest costs incurred.  With implementation of this standard, all 
interest costs will be expensed in the period they are incurred, with no capitalization of any interest 
expense. 

 
NOTE 3 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  
 

Various restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by state statutes.  These are summarized as 
follows:  
 
Deposits - The Authority is required by the Deposits of Public Monies Act 72 of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania, dated August 6, 1971, to maintain deposits that are properly collateralized.  
Collateralization is permitted to be on a "pooled" basis.  

 
Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's 
deposits might not be recovered.  The Authority does not have a policy regarding custodial credit risk; 
however, deposits are in compliance with Act 72.  As of March 31, 2018, $29,895,561 of the Authority's 
bank balance of $30,703,054 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:  
 

Collateralized with securities held by pledging financial institution's trust 
department or agent on a pooled basis or individual basis $ 29,895,561       

 
As of March 31, 2018, $807,493 of the Authority's bank balances were covered by FDIC insurance. 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk - Authority deposits greater than five percent of total Authority deposits 
were with the following institutions at March 31, 2018:  
 

First National Bank $ 29,698,050       96.73%  
 

NOTE 4 – INVESTMENTS  
 

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk arises from investments and is defined as "the risk that changes in 
interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of the investment.”  The Authority does not have a 
specific policy that addresses Interest Rate Risk.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk - The Authority places no limit on the amount the Authority can invest in 
any one issuer.  More than five percent of the Authority's investments are in the following investments: 

 
Bayerische Landebank $ 162,097,004 69.06%
Bear Stearns Capital Markets, Inc. $ 34,507,293   14.70%
Federal Home Loan Banks $ 18,726,922   7.98%
US Treasury Bills $ 16,162,510   6.89%  
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NOTE 4 – INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation to the Authority.  The Authority is authorized by the Municipal Authorities Act to invest in 
Treasury Bills and short term obligations of the Federal Government or its instrumentality obligations.   
 
Credit Risk (continued) 
 
The Authority further addresses credit risk through the Trust Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1993, to 
invest in various "permitted investments," provided they meet various requirements which include: 
 
1.    Direct obligations of the United States of America and securities fully and unconditionally guaranteed 

as to the timely payment of principal and interest by the United States of America, provided, that the 
full faith and credit of the United States of America must be pledged to any such direct obligation or 
guarantee "Direct Obligations";  

2.    Direct obligations and fully guaranteed certificates of beneficial interest of the Export-Import Bank of 
the United States; consolidated debt obligations and letter of credit-backed issues of the Federal 
Home Loan Banks; participation certificates and senior debt  obligations of the Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMCs") debentures of the Federal Housing Administration; mortgage-
backed securities (except stripped mortgage securities which are valued greater than par on the 
portion of unpaid principal) and senior debt obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association 
("FNMAs"); participation certificates of the General Services Administration; guaranteed mortgage-
backed securities and guaranteed participation certificates of the Government National Mortgage 
Association ("GNMAs"); guaranteed participation certificates and guaranteed pool certificates of the 
Small Business Administration; debt obligations and letter of credit-backed issues of the Student 
Loan Marketing Association; local authority bonds of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development; guaranteed Title XI financing of the U.S. Maritime Administration; guaranteed transit 
bonds of the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority, Resolution Funding Corporation 
securities.  

 

3.    Direct obligations of any state of the United States of America or any subdivision or agency thereof 
whose unsecured, uninsured, and unguaranteed general obligation debt is rated, at the time of 
purchase, "A" or better by Moody's Investors Service and "A" or better by Standard & Poor's 
Corporation, or any obligation fully and unconditionally guaranteed by any state, subdivision or 
agency whose unsecured, uninsured, and unguaranteed general obligation debt is rated, at the time of 
purchase, "A" or better by Moody's Investors Service and "A" or better by Standard & Poor's 
Corporation; 

4.  Commercial paper (having original maturities of not more than 270 days) rated, at the time of 
purchase, "P-1" by Moody's Investors Service and "A-1" or better by Standard & Poor's Corporation;  

 

5.   Federal funds, unsecured certificates of deposit, time deposits or bankers acceptances (in each case 
having maturities of not more than 365 days) of any domestic bank including a branch office of a 
foreign bank which branch office is located in the United States, provided legal opinions are received 
to the effect that full and timely payment of such deposit or similar obligation is enforceable against 
the principal office or any branch of such bank, which, at the time of purchase, has a short-term 
"Bank Deposit" rating of "P-1" by Moody's Investors Service and a "Short-Term CD" rating of "A-1" 
or better by Standard & Poor's Corporation.  
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NOTE 4 – INVESTMENTS (continued)  
 
6.  Deposits of any bank or savings and loan association which has combined capital, surplus and 

undivided profits of not less than $3 million, provided such deposits are continuously and fully 
insured by the Bank Insurance Fund or the Savings Association Insurance Fund of the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation; 

7.   Investments in money-market funds rated "AAAm" or "AAAm-G" by Standard & Poor's Corporation, 
including those funds for which the Trustee or an affiliate perform services for a fee, whether as 
custodian, transfer agent, investment advisor or otherwise.  It is acknowledged that such shares are 
not obligations of or endorsed by the Trustee and are not insured by FDIC.  

 

8.    Repurchase agreements collateralized by Direct Obligations, GNMAs, FNMAs, or FHLMCs with any 
registered broker/dealer subject to the Securities Investors' Protection Corporation jurisdiction or any 
commercial bank insured by the FDIC, if such broker/dealer or bank has an uninsured, unsecured and 
unguaranteed obligation rated at the time of purchase "P-1" or "A3" or better by Moody's Investors 
Service, and "A-1" or "A-" or better by Standard & Poor's Corporation, provided:  
 

a.    a master repurchase agreement or specific written repurchase agreement governs the transaction; 
and  

 

b.    the securities are held free and clear of any lien by the Trustee or an independent third party 
acting solely as agent ("Agent") for the Trustee, and such third party is (i) a Federal Reserve 
Bank, (ii) a bank which is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and which has 
combined capital, surplus and undivided profits of not less than $50 million or (iii) a bank 
approved in writing for such purpose by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, and the Trustee 
shall have received written confirmation from such third party that it holds such securities, free 
and clear of any lien, as agent for the Trustee; and 

    

c.    a perfected first security interest under the Uniform Commercial Code, or book entry procedures 
prescribed at 31 C.F.R. 306.1 et s. or 31 C.F.R. 350.0 et seq. in such securities is created for the 
benefit of the Trustee; and 
 

d. the repurchase agreement has a term of 180 days or less, and the Trustee or the Agent will value 
the collateral securities no less frequently than weekly and will liquidate the collateral securities if 
any deficiency in the required collateral is not restored within two (2) business days of such 
valuation; and 

 

e.    the fair market value of the securities in relation to the amount of the repurchase obligation, 
including principal and interest, is equal to at least 103%. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk - is the risk that in the event of failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments in collateral securities 
that are held in the possession of another party.  The Authority's balances of these investments at March 
31, 2018, were not subject to custodial credit risk.  These investments are collateralized, insured, or held 
by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the Authority's name.  

 
The net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2018 and 
2017 relates to investments in the debt service fund and debt service reserve fund.  These investments 
are expected to be held to maturity and losses on these investments will more than likely not be 
realized.  The presentation of “net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments” is required by 
and in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31: Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and for External Investment Pools. 
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NOTE 4 – INVESTMENTS (continued)  
 

As of March 31, 2018, the Authority’s investments consisted of the following: 
 

Special Funds Held by Trustee
Money market funds $ 3,223,796     AAAm $ 3,223,796     $ -               $ -               $ -               $ -               
Direct Obligations of the USA 16,162,510   AAAm -               16,162,510   -               -               -               
FHLMCs and FNMAs 18,726,922   Aaa -               18,726,922   -               -               -               
Repurchase agreements 162,097,004 N/A -               162,097,004 -               -               -               
Investment contract 34,507,293   N/A -               -               7,125,000     21,475,000   5,907,293     

  Total Special Funds Held by Trustee 234,717,525 3,223,796     196,986,436 7,125,000     21,475,000   5,907,293     

Included in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Money market funds 16,154          16,154          -               -               -               -               
PLGIT 176,557        AAAm 176,557        -               -               -               -               
PA Invest 254,522        AAAm 254,522        -               -               -               -               

  Total Included in Cash and Cash Equivalents 447,233        447,233        -               -               -               -               

Included in Restricted Cash Held By Authority
Certificates of deposit 4,438,862     -               4,438,862     -               -               -               
PLGIT 5,474,415     AAAm 5,474,415     -               -               -               -               

  Total Included in Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,913,277     5,474,415     4,438,862     -               -               -               

Total Assets Considered Investments $ 245,078,035 $ 9,145,444     $ 201,425,298 $ 7,125,000     $ 21,475,000   $ 5,907,293     

12 Months
Fair Value Maturity Date or Less

No
 Rating 

Greater Than
60 Months

13 to 24
Months

25 to 60 
Months

 
 In accordance with GASB Statement No. 62: Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, restricted investments were classified as non-current due to these investments being restricted as to withdrawal or 
use for expenditures in the acquisition or construction of non-current assets or are segregated for the liquidation of long-term debt.  
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NOTE 5 – SPECIAL FUNDS HELD BY TRUSTEE 
 

As required by various trust indentures to secure bonds, various monies are required to be deposited in the 
following funds:  

 
Debt Service Fund - To accumulate funds for the payment of various bonds principal and interest 
payments prior to maturity.  
 
Debt Service Reserve Fund - To accumulate funds as required by the original and subsequent bond 
indentures equal to the maximum annual debt service requirement on bonds outstanding.  The balance in 
this fund meets the maximum annual debt service requirement as defined in the bond indentures as of 
March 31, 2018 and 2017. 
 
2000/2001 Escrow Fund - Created from the transfer of the balance of funds previously held in a Capital 
Reserve Fund.  This fund is to be used to timely pay all outstanding principal and interest on the 2000 and 
2001 bonds upon maturity. 

 
2013 Capital Projects Fund - Created from the proceeds of the 2013 bonds to be held in trust by the 
Trustee as security under the Indenture and disbursed by the Trustee pursuant to Section 4.01 in payment 
of the costs of the 2013 Capital Projects. 
 
2016 Capital Projects Fund – Created from the proceeds of the 2016 bonds to be held in trust by the 
Trustee as security under the Indenture and disbursed by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture in 
payment of the costs of the 2016 Capital Projects. 
 
All of the requirements of the Trust Indenture have been met as of March 31, 2018 and 2017.  Special 
funds held by the Trustee at March 31, 2018 and 2017, include: 
 

Investments $ 211,323,945 $ 233,771,648
Accrued interest receivable 23,393,580 21,192,194

Total $ 234,717,525 $ 254,963,842 

2018 2017

 
Accrued interest receivable is calculated using the current interest method. 

 
NOTE 6 – RESTRICTED CASH HELD BY AUTHORITY 
 

 The Capital Expenditures Fund was created pursuant to the 1993 Bond Indenture to provide funds for 
capital additions (other than those financed from the Construction Fund), extraordinary repairs and 
maintenance, and refunds under line deposit agreements.  The Authority is required to make quarterly 
deposits with the Trustee into the Capital Expenditures Fund in an amount equal to 3.50% of the 
operating revenues of the preceding fiscal quarter and such additional amounts as are provided in the 
capital expenditures budget.  As part of the purchase of the Hempfield Township Municipal Authority 
during fiscal year 2017, the Authority acquired approximately $21 million of restricted cash and 
investments, of which, $15,410,811 of these restricted funds were transferred to restricted capital 
expenditure funds in accordance with the agreement. 
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NOTE 7 – ADVANCES FOR CONSTRUCTION 
 

Amounts advanced to the Authority to expand services which are refundable to the customer are credited 
to advances for construction.  Advances are refunded up to the total advance based on agreed upon terms 
related to new services.  Generally, advances not refunded within a ten-year period are transferred to 
capital contributions.  Contributions not subject to refund are credited directly to capital contributions. 

 
NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT  

 
1993 Series A, B and C Revenue Bonds:  
On November 9, 1993, the Authority issued the 1993 Series A, B, and C Revenue Bonds (Capital 
Appreciation and Current Interest bonds), with a face value of $259,185,000.  A portion of the 1993 
Series Revenue Bonds were issued to advance refund a portion of the Series J, K, M, O, P and Q Revenue 
Bonds.  The remaining proceeds of the 1993 Series Revenue Bonds were issued to provide funds for 
water system construction projects.   
 
The 1993 Series A Revenue Bonds matured on August 15, 2007.  The 1993 Series B Revenue Bonds 
matured August 15, 2002.  
 
A portion of the 1993 Series C Capital Appreciation Bonds were defeased in prior years.  The 1993 Series 
C Capital Appreciation bonds that were not defeased were paid in full during the fiscal year ended March 
31, 2017.  There was no outstanding balance on the 1993 Series Bonds as of March 31, 2017. 
 
First Supplemental Trust Indenture Dated July 15, 1995:  
 
1995 Series A and B Revenue Bonds:  
On July 27, 1995, the Authority issued the 1995 Series A and B Revenue Bonds (collectively called the 
1995 Revenue Bonds), with a face value of $89,335,000.  The 1995 Series A Revenue Bonds were issued 
to advance refund a portion of the 1993 Series C Capital Appreciation Bonds.  The 1995 Series B 
Revenue Bonds were issued to provide funds for water system construction projects and to provide for the 
cost of issuance of the 1995 Series A and B Bonds.  
 
The advance refunding of the aforementioned Bonds resulted in a gain on bond refunding of $689,883, 
which is being amortized over the life of the 1995 Series A Bonds, and the unamortized gain is included 
in deferred inflows of resources in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  At March 
31, 2018 and 2017, the unamortized gain on the advance refunding was $16,752 and $19,370, 
respectively.  Amortization of the gain on refunding of $2,618 in 2018 and 2017 is included in interest 
expense.   

 
A portion of the 1995 Series A Revenue Bonds (Capital Appreciation) were defeased in 1999.  The 1995 
Series A Revenue Bonds that were not defeased and are outstanding at March 31, 2018 and 2017 have a 
yield to maturity of 6.19%, maturing on August 15, 2019.  
 
The 1995 Series B Revenue Bonds were refunded as part of an advance refunding provided for with the 
issuance of the 1998 Series Revenue Bonds.  
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 
Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture Dated May 18, 1999:  
 
1999 Series A and B Revenue Bonds:  
On May 18, 1999, the Authority issued the 1999 Series A and B Revenue Bonds, with a face value of 
$60,345,000.  The 1999 Series Revenue Bonds were issued to advance refund a portion of the 1993 Series 
C Capital Appreciation Bonds and to provide for the principal and interest due August 15, 1999 on the 
1993 Series A, B, and C current interest bonds.  The 1999 Series B Revenue Bonds were issued to 
advance refund a portion of the 1995 Series A Capital Appreciation Bonds and to provide $1,352,138 of 
funding for various construction projects.   

 
The advance refunding of the aforementioned bonds resulted in an economic gain of $1,255,165  on all of 
the offerings of the Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture dated May 18, 1999 and a realized loss of 
$1,005,065 on the 1999 Series A and B Revenue Bonds.  The realized loss is being amortized over the 
life of the 1999 Series A and B Bonds and is included in deferred outflows of resources on the financial 
statements.  At March 31, 2018 and 2017, the unamortized loss on the advance refunding was $224,499 
and $265,945, respectively.  Amortization of the loss on refunding of $41,446 in 2018 and 2017 is 
included in interest expense.   
 
The 1999 Series A Revenue Bonds (Capital Appreciation) outstanding at March 31, 2018 and 2017, have 
a yield to maturity of 5.20% to 5.30%, maturing in various amounts on August 15, 2022, and 2023. 
 
The 1999 Series B Revenue Bonds matured August 15, 2001.  
 
2000 Series Revenue Bonds:  
On August 15, 2000, the Authority issued the 2000 Series Revenue Bonds (Capital Appreciation) with a 
face value of $27,615,000.  The 2000 Series Revenue Bonds were issued for the purpose of providing 
funding for principal and interest on the 1993 Series A, B, and C Current Interest Bonds maturing August 
15, 2000.  
 
At March 31, 2018 and 2017, the 2000 Series Revenue Bonds (Capital Appreciation) have a yield to 
maturity of 5.70%, maturing in various amounts on August 15, 2019, 2020, and 2021. 
 
2001 Series Revenue Bonds:  
On August 15, 2001, the Authority issued the 2001 Series Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds (Capital 
Appreciation) with a face value of $19,635,000.  The 2001 Series Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds were 
issued for the purpose of providing funding for principal and interest on the 1993 Series A, B, and C 
Current Interest Bonds, principal and interest on the 1998 Series Current Interest Bonds, and principal on 
the 1999 Series B Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on August 15, 2001.  
 
The advanced refunding resulted in a realized loss of $2,360,884 which is being amortized over the life of 
the 1998 Series Current Interest Bonds.  The unamortized loss of $729,594 and $827,962 as of March 31, 
2018 and 2017, respectively, is included in deferred outflows of resources in these financial statements.  
Amortization of the loss on refunding of $98,369 in 2018 and 2017 is included in interest expense.   
 
At March 31, 2018 and 2017, the 2001 Series Tax Exempt Revenue Bonds (Capital Appreciation) have a 
yield to maturity of 5.80%, maturing on August 15, 2018. 
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 
Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture Dated December 1, 2000:  
 
2000A Series Revenue Bonds:  
On December 27, 2000, the Authority issued the 2000A Series Tax-Exempt (Capital Appreciation) and 
the 2000A Series Taxable Municipal Service Revenue Bonds (collectively called the 2000A Revenue 
Bonds, with a face value of $25,110,000).  The 2000A Series Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds were issued to 
fund the payment of interest on the 1993 Series A, B, and C Current Interest Bonds and the 1998 Series 
Current Interest Bonds due February 15, 2001.  The 2000A Series Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds were also 
issued to provide funding for various construction projects.  The 2000A Series Taxable Revenue Bonds 
were issued to primarily fund the creation of the 2000A Capital Reserve Fund.  
 
The 2000A Series Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds (Capital Appreciation) have a yield to maturity of 5.70%, 
maturing in various amounts on August 15, 2023 and 2024.  
 
The 2000A Series Taxable Municipal Service Revenue Bonds matured on August 15, 2001.  
 
Sixth Supplemental Trust Indenture Dated November 1, 2001:  
 
2001A Series Revenue Bonds:  
On August 15, 2001, the Authority issued the 2001A Series Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds (Capital 
Appreciation) with a face value of $30,710,000.  The 2001A Series Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds were 
issued for the purpose of providing funding for principal and interest on the 1993 Series A, B, and C 
Current Interest Bonds, principal and interest on the 1998 Series Current Interest Bonds, and principal on 
the 1999 Series B Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on August 15, 2001.  
 
At March 31, 2018 and 2017, the 2001A Series Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds (Capital Appreciation) have 
a yield to maturity of 6.17%, maturing in various amounts annually on August 15, 2019 through 2023.  
 
Ninth Supplemental Trust Indenture Dated November 1, 2006 
 
2006 Series A and B Revenue Bonds  
On November 1, 2006, the Authority issued the 2006 Series A and B Revenue Bonds (collectively called 
the 2006 Revenue Bonds), with a face value of $89,590,000.  The 2006 Series A Revenue Bonds were 
issued to (1) advance refund all outstanding Municipal Service Revenue Bonds, Series of 2005; (2) fund 
additional capital projects; and (3) pay the costs of issuing the Series A Bonds including the cost of bond 
issuance.  The 2006 Series B Revenue Bonds were issued to (1) fund various project improvements, 
acquisitions and renovations to the Authority's facilities; and (2) pay the costs of issuing the Series B 
Bonds including the cost of bond insurance.  
 
Optional Redemption  
The current interest Series A of 2006 Bonds and Series B Current Interest Bonds may be redeemed prior 
to maturity at the option of the Authority on any date on or after August 15, 2016, in whole or in part, in 
any order of maturity and by lot within a maturity, in each case, upon payment of the redemption price of 
100% of the principal amount to be redeemed together with interest accrued to the date fixed for 
redemption in accordance with the provisions of Article IV of the Original Indenture.  
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 
     During fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, the Authority exercised the optional redemption of the 2006 

Series A Revenue Bonds.  As a result of redemption, the remaining deferred loss on refunding of 
$167,057 was included in interest expense.  As of March 31, 2017, there was no balance outstanding on 
the 2006 Series A Revenue Bonds. 
 
The 2006 Series B Revenue Bonds consist of current interest and capital appreciation bonds.  The 2006 
Series B Current Interest Bonds were defeased with funds from the 2015 Municipal Service Revenue 
Bonds being deposited into an irrevocable trust.  During fiscal year ended March 31, 2018, the optional 
redemption was exercised and the funds held in trust were used to pay the outstanding balance of the 
bonds. 
 
The 2006 Series B Capital Appreciation Bonds outstanding at March 31, 2018 and 2017 have yields to 
maturity of 4.80% to 4.82%, maturing in varying amounts on August 15, 2029 and 2030. 

 
The Series B of 2006 Capital Appreciation Bonds will not be redeemable prior to their stated maturities.  
 
Tenth Supplemental Trust Indenture Dated December 15, 2009: 2009 Series Revenue Bonds  
On December 15, 2009, the Authority issued the Series of 2009 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds 
(collectively called the 2009 Revenue Bonds), with a face value of $6,115,000.  The 2009 Revenue Bonds 
were issued to (1) currently refund all of the Authority's outstanding Municipal Service Revenue Bonds, 
Series of 1998; (2) reimburse the Authority for a portion of its expenditures incurred within the previous 
60 days in connection with the Ringerstown emergency repair project; (3) finance certain new capital 
projects; and (4) pay the costs of issuing the 2009 bonds.  The unamortized loss of $12,014 and $13,912 
as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, is included in deferred outflows of resources in these 
financial statements.  Amortization of the loss on refunding of $1,897 in 2018 and 2017 is included in 
interest expense.   

 
During fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the Authority refunded $5,355,000 of the current interest 2009 
Series Revenue Bonds.  The remaining balance outstanding matured on August 15, 2016.  There was no 
remaining balance on the Series of 2009 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds as of March 31, 2017. 
 
Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture Dated May 1, 2013: 2013 Series Revenue Bonds  
 
On May 1, 2013, the Authority issued Series of 2013 Municipal Services Revenue Bonds with a face 
value of $132,110,000.  The 2013 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds were issued to finance the 
Authority’s five year capital expenditure plan dated September 2012. 
 
As a result of the issuance of the 2017 Series Revenue Bonds, $129,525,000 of the 2013 Bonds were 
advance refunded.  The remaining current interest 2013 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds outstanding at 
March 31, 2018 have stated interest rates from 2.00% to 3.25%, mature in various amounts from August 
15, 2018 through August 15, 2029.  Interest is paid semi-annually on February 15 and August 15. 
 
Optional Redemption 
The 2013 Bonds maturing on or after August 15, 2024 may be redeemed prior to maturity at the option of 
the Authority on any date on or after August 15, 2023 in whole or in part, in any order of maturity and by 
lot within a maturity, in each case, upon payment of the redemption price of 100% of the principal 
amount to be redeemed together with interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption in accordance with 
the provisions of Article IV of the Original Indenture. 
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 

Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture Dated March 1, 2015: 2015 Series Revenue Bonds 
 
On April 1, 2015, the Authority issued the Series of 2015 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds with a face 
value of $10,000,000.  The 2015 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds were issued to 1) currently refund a 
portion of the Authority’s outstanding Municipal Service Revenue Bonds, Series of 2009; 2) advance 
refund all of the Authority’s outstanding Municipal Service Revenue Bonds, Series B of 2006 which are 
not capital appreciation bonds; 3) to refinance debt held by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers arising 
from the Authority’s acquisition of long-term water storage rights from the Corps; 4) fund any Debt 
Service Reserve Fund requirement with respect to the 2015 Bonds; and 5) pay the costs of issuing the 
2015 Bonds. 
 
As a result of the advance refunding, the Authority realized a loss of $105,861, which is being amortized 
over the life of the 2015 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds, and the unamortized loss is included in 
deferred outflows of resources on the financial statements.  At March 31, 2018 and 2017, the unamortized 
loss on the advance refunding was $93,159 and $97,393, respectively.  Amortization of the loss on 
refunding of $4,234 in 2018 and 2017 is included in interest expense.   
 
The 2015 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds outstanding at March 31, 2018 have stated interest rates 
from 1.500% to 3.625%, mature in various amounts from August 15, 2018 through August 15, 2040.  
Interest is paid semi-annually on February 15 and August 15. 
 
Optional Redemption 
The 2015 Bonds maturing on or after August 15, 2021 shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at 
the option of the Authority, in whole or in part on August 15, 2020, or on any date thereafter, in any order 
of maturity as selected by the Authority, in both cases upon payment of 100% of the par value of such 
2015 Bonds together with interest accrued to the date set for redemption. 

 
Mandatory Redemption 
The 2015 Bonds maturing on August 15th of the years 2028, 2035 and 2040 are subject to mandatory 
sinking fund redemption at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption on the dates and in the principal amounts set forth below: 

 
Bonds Maturing August 15, 2028 

Year Amount 
2025 $115,000 
2026 $115,000 
2027 $120,000 
2028* $125,000 

 
Bonds Maturing August 15, 2035 

Year Amount 
2030 $  90,000 
2031 $  95,000 
2032 $  95,000 
2033 $105,000 
2034 $100,000 
2035* $110,000 
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 

Bonds Maturing August 15, 2040 
Year Amount 
2036 $110,000 
2037 $120,000 
2038 $120,000 
2039 $125,000 
2040* $130,000 

 
*Maturity 
 
Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture Dated August 15, 2016: 2016 Series Revenue Bonds 
 
On July 14, 2016, the Authority issued the Series of 2016 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds with a face 
value of $184,475,000.  The 2016 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds were issued to 1) currently refund a 
portion of the Authority’s outstanding Municipal Service Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series A of 2006; 2) 
fund certain of the Authority’s budgeted capital expenditures; 3) fund a deposit to the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund; and 4) pay the costs of issuing the 2016 Bonds. 
 
The 2016 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds outstanding at March 31, 2018 have stated interest rates 
from 3.00% to 5.00%, mature in various amounts from August 15, 2018 through August 15, 2042.  
Interest is paid semi-annually on February 15 and August 15. 
 
Optional Redemption 
The 2016 Bonds maturing on or after August 15, 2026 shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at 
the option of the Authority, in whole or in part on August 15, 2025, or on any date thereafter, in any order 
of maturity as selected by the Authority, in both cases upon payment of 100% of the par value of such 
2016 Bonds together with interest accrued to the date set for redemption. 

 
Mandatory Redemption 
The 2016 Bonds maturing on August 15th of the years set forth in the schedule below are subject to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof plus 
accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption on the dates and in the principal amounts set forth below: 

 
Bonds Maturing August 15, 2038 

Year Amount 
2037 $14,415,000 
2038* $23,415,000 

 
Bonds Maturing August 15, 2042 (3% Original Issue Discount Bonds) 

Year Amount 
2039 $3,350,000 
2040 $3,525,000 
2041 $3,125,000 
2042* $2,500,000 
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
   

Bonds Maturing August 15, 2042 (5% Original Issue Premium Bonds) 
Year Amount 
2039 $21,230,000 
2040 $22,245,000 
2041 $24,035,000 
2042* $  6,745,000 

 
*Maturity 
 
Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture Dated December 15, 2017: 2017 Series Revenue Bonds 
 
On December 28, 2017, the Authority issued the Series of 2017 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds with a 
face value of $137,375,000.  The 2017 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds were issued to advance refund 
a portion of the outstanding Municipal Revenue Service Bonds, Series of 2013.  
 
The advanced refunding resulted in an economic gain of $3,029,449 and a realized loss of $3,613,943, 
which is being amortized over the life of the 2013 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds.  The unamortized 
loss of $3,552,948 as of March 31, 2018 is included in deferred outflows of resources in these financial 
statements.  Amortization of the loss on refunding of $60,995 in 2018 is included in interest expense.   
 
The 2017 Municipal Service Revenue Bonds outstanding at March 31, 2018 have stated interest rates 
from 3.125% to 5.00%, mature in various amounts from August 15, 2018 through August 15, 2037.  
Interest is paid semi-annually on February 15 and August 15. 
 
Optional Redemption 
The 2017 Bonds maturing on or after August 15, 2028 shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at 
the option of the Authority, in whole or in part on August 15, 2027, or on any date thereafter, in any order 
of maturity as selected by the Authority, in both cases upon payment of 100% of the par value of such 
2017 Bonds together with interest accrued to the date set for redemption.    

 
During prior years, the Authority refunded certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in 
irrevocable trusts which guarantee all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.  Accordingly, 
neither the assets held in trust nor the refunded bonds appear in the accompanying financial statements.  
The outstanding balances of the defeased bonds and related investments in the irrevocable trusts as of 
March 31, 2018 were as follows: 
 

Bond Description
1993 Series C Capital Appreciation Bonds $ 65,280,000   $ -               $ 64,748,175   
1995 Series A Capital Appreciation Bonds 71,135,000   -               65,425,663   
2013 Series Current Interest Bonds 129,525,000 35,523,125   145,392,208 

Total $ 265,940,000 $ 35,523,125   $ 275,566,046 

Escrow Fund 
Balance

Total Interest 
Maturities

Total Principal 
Maturities
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 
Notes Payable  
In March of 2000, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33001292-100 for up to $2,595,325 for the 
purpose of water line construction projects.  Total borrowings were $2,517,930 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at 1.349% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $11,702 through July 1, 2021.  

 
In May of 2000, the Authority borrowed $568,325 through Pennvest note #P33001192-100 for a water 
line extension construction project for the acquisition of the Saltsburg Water System.  The note bears 
interest at 1.211% per annum.  Interest and principal payments are due in monthly installments of $2,736 
through September 1, 2019.  
 
In July of 2000, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33001293-100 for up to $1,008,399 for the 
purpose of water line construction projects.  Total borrowings were $683,845 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at the rate of 1.349% per annum.  Interest and 
principal payments are due in monthly installments of $2,641 through January 1, 2022.  
 
On March 21, 2001, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33000190-101 for up to $337,000, for 
the purpose of water line construction projects.  Total borrowings were $268,839 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $1,167 through December 1, 2022.  
 
On July 18, 2001, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33000013-101 for up to $960,990 for the 
purpose of water line construction projects.  Total borrowings were $510,268 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 1.156% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $2,182 through February 1, 2023.  
 
On October 15, 2003, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33000024-101 for up to $651,850, for 
the purpose of water line construction projects.  Total borrowings were $519,614 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 1.156% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $2,327 through December 1, 2023.  
 
In September of 2003, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33001239-100 for up to $5,397,911 for 
the purpose of water line construction projects.  Total borrowings were $5,397,911 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 1.156% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $25,072 through December 1, 2025.  
 
In January of 2004, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33001236-100 for up to $762,000 for the 
purpose of water line construction projects.  Total borrowings were $653,156 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.774% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $3,347 through March 1, 2025.  
 
On October 19, 2006, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33001363-100 for up to $1,617,500, for 
the purpose of water line construction and replacement projects.  Total borrowings were $1,617,500 under 
the note.  The outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.556% per annum.  Interest 
and principal payments are due in monthly installments of $8,322 through September 1, 2027.  
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
   

On December 28, 2006, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33001262-100 for up to $2,443,000, 
for the purpose of water line construction and replacement projects.  Total borrowings were $2,443,000 
under the note.  The outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.512% per annum.  
Interest and principal payments are due in monthly installments of $12,524 through March 1, 2028.  
 
On July 1, 2005, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33001243-100 for up to $101,090 for the 
construction of improvements to the water supply system.  Total borrowings were $79,996 under the note.  
The outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.774% per annum.  Interest and 
principal payments are due in monthly installments of $381 through July 1, 2026. 

 
On March 22, 2005, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33000059-101 for up to $545,000 for the 
purpose of water line construction projects.  Total borrowings were $406,304 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.774% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $1,905 through April 1, 2026.   
 
In December of 2006, the Authority entered into an agreement to purchase a portion of the wastewater 
system from Ligonier Township Municipal Authority.  In procuring the portion of the Ligonier Township 
Municipal Authority wastewater system, the Authority assumed Pennvest Loan #P33000034-101 from 
the Ligonier Township Municipal Authority.  Total borrowings were $516,806 under this note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.774% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $2,720 through February 1, 2024.  
 
On May 24, 2006, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33001406-100 for up to $363,652 (loan 
portion) and $318,348 (grant portion) for a total of $682,000 for construction of the System, in 
Conemaugh Township, Indiana County.  Total borrowings were $363,652 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $1,168 through September 1, 2037.  
 
On April 20, 2009, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33000101-101 for up to $4,750,000 for 
the purpose of water line replacement projects.  Total borrowings were $4,125,083 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.690% per annum until maturity.  Interest 
and principal payments are due in monthly installments of $20,559 through April 1, 2031.   
 
In January 2012, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33000120-101 for up to $100,000 for the 
purpose of a water line extension project.  Total borrowings were $83,774 under the note.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.255% per annum through May 2018 and 
3.395% per annum thereafter.  Interest and principal payments are due monthly in installments of $436 
through May 1, 2018, and $471 thereafter to September 1, 2032.   
 
In April 2015, the Authority acquired the City of Jeannette Municipal Authority.  As part of this 
acquisition, the Authority assumed the following loans: 
 

- Pennvest Loan #P33000157-101 with an acquired value of $77,275.  The outstanding borrowings 
under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.547% per annum.  Interest and principal payments are 
due in monthly installments of $529 through November 1, 2029. 
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 

- Pennvest Loan #P33000352-101 with an acquired value of $2,253,981.  The outstanding 
borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $13,702 through April 1, 2034. 

 
- Pennvest Loan #P33000681-102 with an acquired value of $289,291.  The outstanding borrowings 

under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.774% per annum.  Interest and principal payments are 
due in monthly installments of $3,302 through June 1, 2023. 

 
- Pennvest Loan #P33000766-102 with an acquired value of $3,109,946.  The outstanding 

borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.547% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $21,294 through November 1, 2029. 

 
- Pennworks Loan #99900027 with an acquired value of $777,302.  The outstanding borrowings 

under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.00% per annum.  Interest and principal payments are due 
in monthly installments of $5,569 through August 1, 2028. 

 
On January 8, 2015, the Authority was granted Pennvest note #P33001544-100 for up to $200,000 for the 
purpose of a water line extension project.  As of March 31, 2018, the Authority had borrowed $131,650 
under the note.  The outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 1.439% per annum 
from October 1, 2015 through September 1, 2020 and 2.027% per annum thereafter.  Interest and 
principal payments are due monthly in installments of $959 through April 1, 2018, $576 through 
September 1, 2020, and $601 thereafter to September 1, 2035.   
  
In February of 2016, the Authority acquired Youngwood Borough Authority.  As part of this acquisition, 
the Authority assumed Pennvest Loan #P33000705-102 with an acquired value of $2,383,521.  The 
outstanding borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $11,622 through November 1, 2034. 
 
In July of 2016, the Authority acquired The Hempfield Township Municipal Authority (THTMA).  As 
part of this acquisition, the Authority assumed the following loans: 
 

- Pennvest Loan #P33000223-101 with an acquired value of $2,999,212.  The outstanding 
borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.774% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $27,655 through December 1, 2026. 
 

- Pennvest Loan #P33000658-102 with an acquired value of $1,669,861.  The outstanding 
borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.774% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $24,276 through October 1, 2022.  
 

- Pennvest Loan #P33000741-102 with an acquired value of $1,413,323.  The outstanding 
borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 2.774% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in monthly installments of $13,599 through June 1, 2026. 

 
- Rural Utilities Service (RUS) Loan #92-01 with an acquired value of $7,089,868.  The outstanding 

borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 3.25% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in semi-annual installments of $177,888 through June 28, 2048. 



MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF WESTMORELAND COUNTY 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 
 

- 34 - 

NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 

- Rural Utilities Service (RUS) Loan #92-02 with an acquired value of $4,819,694.  The outstanding 
borrowings under the note bear interest at a rate of 3.25% per annum.  Interest and principal 
payments are due in semi-annual installments of $113,500 through November 19, 2052. 

 
Other Notes Payable 
 
In March 2011, the Authority obtained a loan from S&T Bank in the amount of $575,000, which was 
used to acquire various vehicles.  Each vehicle was purchased at different times at varying amounts; 
therefore, the Authority accounts for each portion of the loan separately.  The terms of the loan are the 
same for each acquisition and require total monthly payments of $10,584 for five years at a fixed interest 
rate of 2.65%.  These loans matured during fiscal year ended March 31, 2017. 
 
In April 2012, the Authority obtained a loan from S&T Bank in the amount of $750,000, which was used 
to acquire various vehicles.  Each vehicle was purchased at different times at varying amounts; therefore, 
the Authority accounts for each portion of the loan separately.  The terms of the loan are the same for 
each acquisition and require total monthly payments of $12,940 for five years at a fixed interest rate of 
2.16%.  These loans matured during fiscal year ended March 31, 2018. 
 
In May 2013, the Authority obtained a loan from S&T Bank in the amount of $1,000,000, which was 
used to acquire various vehicles.  Each vehicle was purchased at different times at varying amounts; 
therefore, the Authority accounts for each portion of the loan separately.  The terms of the loan are the 
same for each acquisition and require total monthly payments of $16,668 for five years at a fixed interest 
rate of 2.17%.  These loans mature during fiscal year ended March 31, 2019. 
 
During fiscal year 2015, the Authority obtained various loans from S&T Bank to acquire various vehicles.  
Each vehicle was purchased at different times at varying amounts; therefore, the Authority accounts for 
each loan separately.  Total new loans were $658,752 during fiscal year 2015.  The terms of the loans are 
the same for each acquisition and require total monthly payments of $11,592 for five years at a fixed 
interest rate of 2.12%.  These loans mature during fiscal year ended March 31, 2020. 
 
In April 2015, the Authority obtained a loan from First National Bank in the amount of $1,000,000, 
which was used to acquire various vehicles and equipment.  Each vehicle and piece of equipment was 
purchased at different times at varying amounts; therefore, the Authority accounts for each portion of the 
loan separately.  Total new loans were $840,936 during fiscal year 2016.  The terms of the loan are the 
same for each acquisition and require total monthly payments of $14,769 for five years at a fixed interest 
rate of 2.05%.  These loans mature during fiscal year ended March 31, 2021. 

 
During fiscal year 2017, the Authority obtained various loans from First National Bank to acquire various 
vehicles.  Each vehicle was purchased at different times at varying amounts; therefore, the Authority 
accounts for each loan separately.  Total new loans were $457,045 during fiscal year 2017.  The terms of 
the loans require total monthly payments of $8,064 for five years at fixed interest rates of 2.21% through 
2.36%.  These loans mature during fiscal year ended March 31, 2022.
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 
As part of the Authority’s acquisition of THTMA during fiscal year 2017, the Authority issued a note 
payable to THTMA in the amount of $22,462,674.  The outstanding borrowing was recorded at the 
effective interest rate of 3.28% per annum.  Interest and principal payments of $1,500,000 are due 
annually through February 1, 2036. 
 
During fiscal year 2018, the Authority obtained various loans from First National Bank to acquire various 
vehicles.  Each vehicle was purchased at different times at varying amounts; therefore, the Authority 
accounts for each loan separately.  Total new loans were $949,845 during fiscal year 2018.  The terms of 
the loans require total monthly payments of $16,828 for five years at fixed interest rates of 2.02% through 
2.56%.  These loans mature during fiscal years 2022 and 2023.
 
The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2018: 
 

Outstanding Bonds Payable
Final Maturity 

Date
1995 Series A Cap App Bonds August 2019 $ 5,025,000     $ -                $ -                $ 5,025,000     
1999 Series A Cap App Bonds August 2023 32,640,000   -                -                32,640,000   
2000 Series Cap App Bonds August 2021 27,615,000   -                -                27,615,000   
2001 Series Tax-Exempt Cap App August 2018 18,125,000   -                7,245,000      10,880,000   
2000A Series Tax-Exempt Cap App August 2024 13,890,000   -                -                13,890,000   
2001A Series Tax-Exempt Cap App August 2023 30,710,000   -                -                30,710,000   
2006 Series B Cap App Bonds August 2030 24,255,000   -                -                24,255,000   
2013 Series Current Interest Bonds August 2037 132,100,000 -                129,530,000  2,570,000     
2015 Series Current Interest Bonds August 2040 9,985,000     -                5,000             9,980,000     
2016 Series Current Interest Bonds August 2042 183,190,000 -                105,000         183,085,000 
2017 Series Current Interest Bonds August 2037 -               137,375,000  -                137,375,000 

Total Face Value of Bonds Outstanding 477,535,000 137,375,000  136,885,000  478,025,000 

Premiums on Current Interest Bonds 47,944,114 12,710,116  16,698,165    43,956,065 
Accretion - Capital Appreciation Bonds (37,964,792) -                (6,296,366)    (31,668,426) 
Discounts on Current Interest Bonds (138,250)    (26,760)       (9,595)           (155,415)    

     Recorded Value of Bonds Payable 487,376,072 150,058,356 147,277,204  490,157,224

March 31, 2017 
Balance

Bonds Issued/ 
Additions

Principal 
Payments/ 

Amortization
March 31, 2018 

Balance

 
 

(continued) 
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 

(continued) 
 

Final Maturity 
Date

     Recorded Value of Bonds Payable
               (continued from prior page) $  487,376,072   150,058,356   147,277,204  490,157,224 

Notes Payable
Pennvest Note #P33001292-100 July 2021 590,757        -                133,281         457,476        
Pennvest Note #P33001192-100 September 2019 80,822          -                32,036           48,786          
Pennvest Note #P33001293-100 January 2022 148,187        -                29,872           118,315        
Pennvest Note #P33000190-101 December 2022 78,230          -                13,284           64,946          
Pennvest Note #P33000013-101 February 2023 149,674        -                24,584           125,090        
Pennvest Note #P33000024-101 December 2023 181,203        -                25,961           155,242        
Pennvest Note #P33001239-100 December 2025 2,502,615     -                273,375         2,229,240     
Pennvest Note #P33001236-100 March 2025 287,826        -                32,587           255,239        
Pennvest Note #P33001363-100 September 2027 918,827        -                77,283           841,544        
Pennvest Note #P33001262-100 March 2028 1,443,103   -              115,358         1,327,745   
Pennvest Note #P33001243-100 July 2026 37,562          -                3,576             33,986          
Pennvest Note #P33000059-101 April 2026 183,378        -                18,003           165,375        
Pennvest Note #P33000034-101 February 2024 205,178        -                27,289           177,889        
Pennvest Note #P33001406-100 September 2037 259,619        -                11,468           248,151        
Pennvest Note #P33000101-101 April 2031 2,889,479     -                171,081         2,718,398     
Pennvest Note #P33000120-101 December 2033 68,399          -                3,729             64,670          
Pennvest Note #P33000157-101 November 2029 68,646          -                4,652             63,994          
Pennvest Note #P33000352-101 February 2033 2,581,062     -                139,249         2,441,813     
Pennvest Note #P33000681-102 June 2023 227,153        -                33,754           193,399        
Pennvest Note #P33000705-102 November 2034 2,257,628     -                117,425         2,140,203     
Pennvest Note #P33000766-102 November 2029 2,763,994     -                187,306         2,576,688     
Pennvest Note #P33001544-100 September 2035 117,131        -                9,793             107,338        
Pennworks Note #99900027 August 2028 681,619        -                53,687           627,932        
First National Bank loans Various 1,058,016     949,845         331,337         1,676,524     
S&T Bank loans Various 640,553        -                395,043         245,510        
THTMA Note February 2036 20,962,674   -                812,424         20,150,250   
Pennvest Note #P33000223-101 December 2026 2,832,095     -                256,538         2,575,557     
Pennvest Note #P33000741-102 June 2026 1,330,000     -                127,908         1,202,092     
Pennvest Note #P33000658-102 October 2022 1,505,204     -                252,759         1,252,445     
RUS Loan #92-01 June 2050 7,005,973     -                129,975         6,875,998     
RUS Loan #92-02 November 2052 4,772,591     -                73,051           4,699,540     

    Total Notes Payable 58,829,198   949,845         3,917,668      55,861,375   

    Total Outstanding 546,205,270 $ 151,008,201 $ 151,194,872  546,018,599

Less: current maturities 11,200,224 15,341,538

    Total Long-term Debt $ 535,005,046 $ 530,677,061

March 31, 2017 
Balance

Bonds Issued/ 
Additions

Principal 
Payments/ 

Amortization
March 31, 2018 

Balance
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
 
Annual requirements of all outstanding debt as of March 31, 2018, including interest payments, are as 
follows: 
 

Fiscal Years Ending 
March 31,

2019 $ 15,341,538   -                 16,725,012   $ 32,066,550   
2020 22,631,307   (7,125,000)     16,608,695   32,115,002   
2021 22,744,380   (7,225,000)     16,490,437   32,009,817   
2022 22,610,804   (7,125,000)     16,363,998   31,849,802   
2023 22,472,320   (7,125,000)     16,235,248   31,582,568   

2024-2028 107,942,563 (26,880,000)   74,888,252   155,950,815 
2029-2033 95,046,990   -                 58,550,963   153,597,953 
2034-2038 108,832,739 -                 39,384,112   148,216,851 
2039-2043 112,699,740 -                 12,543,143   125,242,883 
2044-2048 2,531,632     -                 382,747        2,914,379     
Thereafter 1,032,362     -                 64,246          1,096,608     

Totals $ 533,886,375 $ (55,480,000)   $ 268,236,853 $ 746,643,228 

Principal  Interest  Net Total 

 Investment 
Contract 

Reimbursements 

 
NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES 
 

The Authority leases vehicles and office equipment for use in operations.  The leases are accounted for as 
capital leases due to the existence of bargain purchase options at the end of each term.  The vehicles and 
equipment have been capitalized and are being depreciated over 4 to 5 years.  The cost of equipment 
acquired under capital leases at March 31, 2018 and 2017 was $485,738.  Accumulated amortization on 
these assets was $69,391 and $34,696 as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  Future minimum 
lease payments are as follows: 

 
Years Ending March 31,

2019 $ 94,038          $ 12,630          $ 106,668        
2020 97,618          9,050            106,668        
2021 101,333        5,335            106,668        
2022 87,386          1,504            88,890          

$ 380,375        $ 28,519          $ 408,894        

Principal  Interest  Total 

 
Amortization expense totaling $34,695 in 2018 and $36,696 in 2017 related to capital assets acquired 
under capital leases is included in depreciation expense.   
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NOTE 10 – LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS 
 

The Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County is the operator and settlor of the Loyalhanna Landfill.  
Currently, the Loyalhanna Landfill is closed and not operating.  State and federal laws and regulations 
require that the Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County place a final cover on its landfill when 
closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill for ten years after 
closure.  In addition to operating expenses related to current activities of the landfill, an expense provision 
and related liability are being recognized based on the future closure and post closure care costs that will 
be incurred near or after the date the landfill no longer accepts waste.  The following schedule contains 
the estimated detailed closure information for the closed landfill.  
 

Estimated Total Closure and 
Postclosure Costs $ 425,100

Percent of Usage (FILLED) 100.00%

Estimated Liability for Closure 
and Postclosure Costs $ 425,100         

Loyalhanna

 
The estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs has a balance of $425,100 and 
$485,348 as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which is based on 100% usage (filled).  The 
estimated total closure and postclosure costs of $425,100, which has already been incurred, is based on 
the amount that would be paid for all equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and 
maintain the landfill.  The Authority is also required to maintain a Collateralized Line of Credit which is 
held by PNC Bank in the amount of $610,176 as of March 31, 2018.  The actual cost of closure and post 
closure costs may be higher or lower due to inflation, or deflation, changes in technology or changes in 
landfill laws and regulations. 

 
NOTE 11 – SELF-FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE 
 

The Authority has a loss sensitive health plan with specific and aggregate stop loss limits.  As of March 
31, 2018 and 2017, a liability, net of the imprest cash balance, of $288,191 and $459,081, respectively, is 
included in current liabilities due to estimated required payments to be paid during future fiscal years for 
claims incurred but not paid at year end.   
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS 
 

Pension Plan for the Employees of the Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County  
 
General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan Description – The Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County sponsors the Pension Plan for the 
Employees of the Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County (MAWC Pension Plan), a single 
employer defined benefit pension plan, established on April 1, 1953, as last amended on October 15, 
1997.  Plan provisions are established by the Authority for contributions required by Act 205 of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 
 
The Plan issues a separate stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information, which is available for inspection at the Authority’s office.  
 
Benefits Provided – The plan pays benefits in the event of disability, death, or retirement of participants 
who meet the eligibility requirements.  A member becomes eligible for benefits at age 65 regardless of 
length of service, or early retirement at age 50 provided that the sum of the participant’s age and 
completed years of service total 70.  The normal retirement benefit for participants retiring after October 
14, 1997, is the sum of (a) 1.85% of average compensation not in excess of the “covered compensation” 
multiplied by years of service to a maximum of 25 years, plus (b) 2.10% of average compensation in 
excess of the “covered compensation” multiplied by years of service to a maximum of 25 years, plus (c) 
0.90% of average compensation multiplied by years of service in excess of 25 years.  Average 
compensation is defined as the average of total compensation for the last 60 months of employment.  
Covered compensation is the average of the ten most recent Social Security Wage Bases as of the date of 
determination. 
 
The early retirement benefit is based on average compensation and service at the time of retirement.  If 
the participant is: (1) age 64 with 17 years of service, or (2) age 63 with 19 years of service, or (3) age 62 
with 20 years of service, then the benefit may commence immediately on an unreduced basis.  Otherwise, 
the benefit is reduced if it commences prior to normal retirement. 
 
Employees who become totally and permanently disabled after five years of service with the Authority, 
will be eligible for disability retirement.  Disability pension payment is calculated at 1.15 percent of 
scheduled monthly earnings at time of disability times years of service.  The minimum benefit is $150, 
provided that the sum of attained age plus years of service totals at least 75.   
 
Upon the death of an active participant before eligibility for early retirement, but after 5 years of service 
and less than 10, the surviving spouse will receive 50% of the accrued benefit reduced for early retirement 
and reduced for the 50% joint and survivor annuity.  The benefit will begin at the later of age 55 or 
current age.  Upon the death of an active participant before eligibility for early retirement, but after 10 
years of service, or after eligibility for early retirement, the surviving spouse will receive 100% of the 
accrued benefit reduced for early retirement and reduced for 100% joint and survivor annuity.  The 
benefit will begin immediately.   
 
Cost of living adjustments are negotiated as part of the collective bargaining agreement between the 
Authority and the Utilities Worker’s Union of America AFL/C10.  The latest cost of living increases were 
1% granted on January 1, 2000, 2001 and 2002.     
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS (continued) 
 
 Employees Covered by Benefit Terms – As of March 31, 2018, the following employees were covered by 
benefit terms: 
 

Participants Count

Active 201
Terminated - Vested 18
Participants receiving benefits 205

Total 424

 
Plan participation was closed to employees hired after October 14, 2012 and for all part-time employees 
not participating in the MAWC Pension Plan on October 14, 2012. 
 
Contributions – Act 205 requires that annual contributions be based upon the calculation of the Minimum 
Municipal Obligation (MMO).  The MMO calculation is based upon the biennial actuarial valuation.  
Employees are not required to contribute under the Act.  

 
The plan may also be eligible to receive an allocation of state aid from the General Municipal Pension 
System State Aid Program which must be used for pension funding.  Any funding requirements 
established by the MMO in excess of employee contributions and state aid must be paid by the 
municipality in accordance with Act 205.  In 2018 and 2017, the MMO for the Plan was $5,865,189 and 
$5,854,167, respectively.  The Authority paid $5,865,189 during fiscal year ended March 31, 2018 and 
$5,079,417 during fiscal year ended March 31, 2017.   
 
Net Pension Liability  

The Authority’s net pension liability was measured as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 
1, 2017.   
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS (continued) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liability in the January 1, 2017 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Investment Rate of Return 7.10% per annum, net of expenses
Salary Increase Nonbargaining unit: 3.75% per year

Bargaining Unit Employees: Base rate increases of
2.50% for the period 2012-2016 contract period and
3.75% thereafter; plus estimated wage "Steps" for
those hired before 10/15/2012 as shown below:
Years of Service: Rate

< 1 year 6.00%
1-2 years 5.50%
2-3 years 5.00%
3-4 years 19.00%
4-6 years 4.00%
6-9 years 3.50%

Expenses Average of prior two years
Social Security Wage Base 3.50% per annum
Inflation 2.50% per annum

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Non-Annuitant with full generational projections for future 
improvements by two-dimensional Scale BB.  Post-disablement rates were based on the RP-2000 
Disability Table.   
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2017 valuation were based on census data provided by 
the Authority through January 1, 2017.   
 
The following assumptions were changed since the last valuation and the impact of the changes on the 
Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) were as follows: 
 

 Valuation programming was corrected.  The decrease in the UAL is $5,974. 
 

 Terminated vested participants are now assumed to begin pension payments at their first 
opportunity to receive an unreduced pension.  The increase in the UAL is $45,177. 
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS (continued) 
 
The long-term expected rate of return is based on return expectations of its retirement plan investment 
advisors and the investment allocation guidelines as described in the MAWC Pension Plan’s Investment 
Policy Statement.   

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation
Long-Term Expected
 Real Rate of Return*

Long-Term Expected
 Nominal Rate of 

Return*

Domestic Large Cap Equity 40% 6.00% 8.65%
Domestic Small Cap Equity 10% 6.25% 8.91%
International Equity 10% 6.50% 9.16%
Fixed Income 30% 0.75% 3.27%
Real Estate 5% 5.75% 8.39%
Private Debt 5% 6.25% 8.91%

Total Net of Fees 4.50% 7.11%

* Rates displayed are arithmetic and net of investment expense, with assumed 2.50% long-term
inflation  

 
The following represents the estimated rates of return on pension plan investments for the past three 
years: 

FYE

Estimated Return 
(Net of Investment 

Expenses)

3/31/2018 10.40%
3/31/2017 12.60%
3/31/2016 -0.70%

 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10% as of March 31, 
2018 and 2017.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the Authority 
continues to fund the Plan in accordance with the actuarially determined contribution, which follows the 
minimum funding requirements under Act 205.  Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments.  Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS (continued) 
 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability  

Balances at March 31, 2017 $ 89,077,775     $ 54,129,934    $ 34,947,841    

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 1,656,602       -                 1,656,602      
Interest 6,330,707       -                 6,330,707      
Differences between expected

and actual experience 727,121          -                 727,121         
Changes in assumptions 40,299            -                 40,299           
Contributions—employer -                  5,865,189      (5,865,189)     
Contributions—employee -                  -                 -                 
Net investment income -                  5,719,288      (5,719,288)     
Benefit payments, including refunds

of employee contributions (4,314,316)     (4,314,316)     -                 

Net changes 4,440,413       7,270,161      (2,829,748)     

Balances at March 31, 2018 $ 93,518,188     $ 61,400,095    $ 32,118,093    

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension 

Liability
(a)

Net Pension 
Liability
(a) – (b)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

(b)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in Discount Rate – The following presents the net 
pension liability of the Authority, calculated using the discount rate of 7.10%, as well as what the 
Authority’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower 
(6.10%) or 1% higher (8.10%) than the current rate: 
 

Total Pension Liability $ 103,559,544 $ 93,518,188   $ 84,916,799   
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 61,400,095   61,400,095   61,400,095   

Net Pension Liability $ 42,159,449   $ 32,118,093   $ 23,516,704   

1% Decrease 
(6.10%)

1% Increase 
(8.10%)

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.10%)

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued MAWC Pension Plan financial report.   
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS (continued) 
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

For the year ended March 31, 2018, the Authority recognized pension expense of $4,099,037 related to 
this Plan.  At March 31, 2018, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources related to this 
pension from the following sources: 
 

actual experience $ 575,637          $ -                  
31,903            -                  

earnings on pension plan investments 1,454,739       3,036,765       
Total $ 2,062,279       $ 3,036,765       

Differences between expected and

Changes in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to this pension plan will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 
 

Fiscal year ending March 31,
2019 $ (2,754)          
2020 (2,754)          
2021 (730,123)      
2022 (238,855)      
2023 -               

Total $ (974,486)      

Amount

 
Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System Plan (PMRS) 
 
General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description – The PMRS pension plan is a single employer defined benefit pension plan controlled 
by the provisions of Resolution No. 02-11 adopted pursuant to Act 15 of 1974.  This plan was acquired 
on April 13, 2015 through the acquisition of the Jeannette Municipal Authority.  The plan participates in 
the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System which is an agent multiple employer public employee 
retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating municipal 
pension plans.  PMRS issues a separate Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  A copy of the 
CAFR can be obtained by contacting the PMRS accounting office.   
 
Benefits Provided – The plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and their 
beneficiaries.  Cost-of-living allowances are provided at the discretion of the plan.   
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS (continued) 
 
General Information about the Pension Plan (continued) 
 
 Employees Covered by Benefit Terms – Previous employees of the Jeannette Municipal Authority are 
covered by this plan.  As of December 31, 2016, the following employees were covered by benefit terms: 
 

Participants Count

Inactive employees or beneficiaries
   currently receiving benefits 8
Inactive employees entitled to but not
   yet receiving benefits 10
Active employees -

Total 18

 
This Plan was frozen as of April 13, 2015; therefore, the plan is not open to new participants and current 
participants will not accumulate additional years of service for the calculation of benefits.   
 
Contributions – Act 205 requires that annual contributions be based upon the calculation of the Minimum 
Municipal Obligation (MMO).  The MMO calculation is based upon the biennial actuarial valuation.  
Employees are not required to contribute under the Act.  

 
The plan may also be eligible to receive an allocation of state aid from the General Municipal Pension 
System State Aid Program which must be used for pension funding.  Any funding requirements 
established by the MMO in excess of employee contributions and state aid must be paid by the 
municipality in accordance with Act 205.   
 
In 2018, the MMO for the Plan was $56,041.  The Authority contributed $56,041 to the Plan.  No 
contributions were made during fiscal year ended March 31, 2017.   
 
Net Pension Liability  
 
The Authority’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2016. 
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS (continued) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
Investment Rate of Return 5.25% compounded annually, net of expenses

Salary Increase Age
Total Rate (%) * 

(including inflation)
25 7.05%
30 5.44%
35 4.55%
40 4.26%
45 3.97%
50 3.72%
55 3.44%
60 3.28%
65 2.80%

* Add 2% for each of the first three years of service.  
Expenses Based upon the expected expenses for the current year.  
Social Security Wage Base 3.3% per annum
Inflation 2.8% per annum

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Male Non-Annuitant table projected 15 years with Scale AA 
for males and the RP-2000 Female Non-Annuitant table projected 15 years with Scale AA and a five year 
setback for females.  15% of pre-retirement deaths are assumed to be service related.  Rates of post-
retirement mortality were based on the RP-2000 Male Annuitant table projected five years with Scale AA 
for males and the RP-2000 Female Annuitant table projected ten years with scale AA for females.  Based 
on information provided by PMRS and review of the actual mortality experience over a five-year period, 
these mortality rates provide projected mortality improvements for the future.  Given that experience 
analysis is required to be performed every five years, the projection periods are sufficient to reflect 
anticipated improvements until the next study will be performed.   
 
Disability life mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined table with a ten year set-forward.   
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were based on the PMRS Experience 
Study for the period covering January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2013 issued by the actuary in July 
2015 as well as subsequent Board approved assumption changes, such as the decrease in the investment 
return assumption from 5.5% to 5.25% in the most recent valuation.   
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS (continued) 
 
The long-term expected rate of return is based on a building-block method in which best estimates of 
expected future real rates of return are developed for each major asset class, for the portfolio as a whole 
and at different levels of probability and confidence.     
 

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation
Long-Term Expected
 Real Rate of Return*

Domestic Large Cap Equity 25% 6.40%
Domestic Small Cap Equity 15% 7.00%
International Equity - Developed 15% 3.70%
International Equity - Emerging 10% 7.90%
Real Estate 20% 7.00%
Fixed Income 15% 2.40%

Total Net of Fees 5.80%

* Rates displayed are arithmetic and net of investment expense

 
 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.25% as of December 
31, 2016.  PMRS has not performed a formal cash flow projection as described under Paragraph 41 of 
GASB Statement 67.  However, Paragraph 43 allows for alternative methods to confirm the sufficiency of 
the Net Position if the evaluations “can be made with sufficient reliability without a separate projection of 
cash flows into and out of the pension plan…”  Adherence to the actuarial funding policy in accordance 
with Act 205 will result in the pension plan’s projected Fiduciary Net Position being greater than or equal 
to the benefit payments projected for each future period.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefits to determine Total Pension Liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in Discount Rate – The following presents the net 
pension liability of the Authority, calculated using the discount rate of 5.25%, as well as what the 
Authority’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower 
(4.25%) or 1% higher (6.25%) than the current rate: 
 

Total Pension Liability $ 2,367,793     $ 2,096,565     $ 1,872,247     
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1,670,628     1,670,628     1,670,628     

Net Pension Liability $ 697,165        $ 425,937        $ 201,619        

1% Decrease 
(4.25%)

Current 
Discount Rate 

(5.25%)
1% Increase 

(6.25%)
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS (continued) 
 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability  
 

Balances at December 31, 2015 $ 1,826,193       $ 1,640,911      $ 185,282         

Changes for the year: 
Service cost -                  -                 -                     
Interest 98,537            -                 98,537           
Changes of benefits -                  -                 -                     
Changes in assumptions 60,033            -                 60,033           
Differences between expected

and actual experience 181,973          -                 181,973         
Contributions—employer -                  56,848           (56,848)          
Contributions—PMRS assessment -                  340                (340)               
PMRS investment income -                  92,538           (92,538)          
Market value investment income * -                  (44,964)          44,964           
Benefit payments (70,171)          (70,171)          -                 
PMRS administrative expense -                  (340)               340                
Additional administrative expense -                  (4,534)            4,534             

Net changes 270,372          29,717           240,655         

Balances at December 31, 2016 $ 2,096,565       $ 1,670,628      $ 425,937         

* Reflects the net investment income (loss) of $37,051 and the income (loss) due to the difference
between expected and actual asset values of ($82,015), which includes the impact from allocation of
assets in support of the underlying retiree liabilities.  

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension 

Liability
(a)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

(b)

Net Pension 
Liability
(a) – (b)
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NOTE 12 – PENSIONS (continued) 
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
For the year ended March 31, 2018, the Authority recognized pension expense of $123,201 related to this 
Plan.  At March 31, 2018, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources related to this pension 
from the following sources: 
 

actual experience $ 249,387          $ -                  
48,026            2,646              

earnings on pension plan investments 96,599            -                  
56,041            -                  

Total $ 450,053          $ 2,646              

Differences between expected and

Changes in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

 
The Authority reported $56,041 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2019.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 
this pension plan will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Fiscal year ending March 31,
2019 $ 112,328       
2020 112,328       
2021 109,983       
2022 56,727         
2023 -               

Total $ 391,366       

Amount

 
NOTE 13 – COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 

Employees of the Authority are entitled to vacation and sick days based on their years of service.  The 
Authority has established a liability of $2,079,847 and $2,033,315 for the fiscal years ended March 31, 
2018 and 2017, respectively, for compensated absences.  It is the Authority's policy to recognize these 
costs in operations when compensated absences are earned. 
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NOTE 14 – DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS 
 

The Authority maintains two defined contribution plans.  Employees hired prior to October 15, 2012, are 
eligible to participate in a section 457 plan.  Contributions under the 457 plan are made only by 
employees on a voluntary basis.  Employees hired on or after October 15, 2012, are eligible to participate 
in a 401(k) plan.  Under the 401(k) plan, employees elect salary deferrals between five and fifteen percent 
with the Authority contributing four percent of the employee's annual compensation.  Effective January 1, 
2018, the Authority contributes five percent of the employee’s annual compensation.  For the fiscal years 
ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, total employer contributions to the 401(k) plan were $276,015 and 
$183,041, respectively.  Employee and employer contributions to these defined contribution plans are 
subject to the plan limitations and Internal Revenue Service limits annually. 
 

NOTE 15 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS  
 

Description  
 
In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Authority provides single-employer post-
employment medical and life insurance benefits (OPEB) for retired employees.  The benefit levels, 
employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed by the Authority and can be amended 
by the Authority through its personnel manual and union contracts.  The Authority has chosen an 
unfunded pay as you go plan whereby all benefits are paid out of the general assets of the Authority.   

 
Stand-alone financial statements are not issued for this plan. 
 
Benefits Provided & Funding Policy  

 
Post-Retirement Medical Benefits  

 
Eligibility - All members collecting a pension from the Authority and who retired from active service 

with the Authority are eligible for post-retirement medical benefits for themselves and 
their spouse until the death of the member.  A surviving spouse of an eligible member who 
dies may elect to continue coverage under COBRA and pay the entire COBRA premium.  
Eligibility for retirement is age 65 with 5 years of service or age 50 provided the 
combination of age and service is 70 years.  Disability retirement eligibility is 5 years of 
service.  Effective for employees hired after October 14, 2012, the same age and service 
requirements of the defined benefit pension plan and voluntarily terminate from active 
service with the Authority.   

 
Benefits - Medical (including Rx) for the retired participant and spouse payable for the life of the 

eligible member.  Dental and Vision are not available to retirees. 
 
Member Cost Sharing - None.  The Authority pays the entire cost for retirees and spouses  except that 

surviving spouses pay the COBRA premium during the period of coverage. 
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NOTE 15 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 
 

Post-Retirement Death Benefits  
 

Eligibility - All members collecting a pension from the Authority and who retired from active service 
with the Authority are eligible for life insurance.  Effective for employees hired after 
October 14, 2012, same age and service requirements of the defined benefit pension plan 
and voluntarily terminate from active service with the Authority.   

 
Benefits - $40,000 reducing $4,000 per year at each anniversary of the date of retirement until 

$20,000 is reached after 5 years.  The $20,000 is maintained for the rest of the eligible 
retiree’s lifetime. 

 
Member Cost Sharing - None.  

 
Funding Policy 

 
Post-employment insurance benefits are currently funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The Authority 
funds on a cash basis as benefits are paid.  No assets have been segregated and restricted to provide 
postretirement benefits.  In 2018, the Authority contributed approximately $2,489,000 to the OPEB 
Plan, all of which was for current premiums.  
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation  

 
The Authority’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution 
of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of 
GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions.”  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  
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NOTE 15 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 
 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation  
 
The following table shows the components of the Authority’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount 
actually contributed to the OPEB Plan, and changes in the Authority’s net OPEB obligation: 
 

 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
March 31, March 31,

Development of annual OPEB cost for fiscal years ending: 2018 2017

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 9,799,061   $ 9,799,061   
Interest on beginning of year net OPEB obligation 1,963,564   1,684,404   
Adjustment to ARC (2,729,642)  (2,341,569)  

Annual OPEB cost $ 9,032,983   $ 9,141,896   

March 31, March 31,
Development of net OPEB obligation for fiscal years ending: 2018 2017

Annual OPEB cost $ 9,032,983   $ 9,141,896   
Contribution made in relation to the ARC* (2,488,939)  (2,162,903)  

Increase in net OPEB obligation 6,544,044   6,978,993   

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 49,089,104 42,110,111 

Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 55,633,148 $ 49,089,104 

 
* Expected contributions used take into account rate subsidy for retirees. 

 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

 

3/31/18 $ 9,799,061     25.40% $ 55,633,148   
3/31/17 $ 9,799,061     22.07% $ 49,089,104   
3/31/16 $ 7,324,275     27.89% $ 42,110,111   
3/31/15 $ 7,232,007     24.59% $ 37,412,478   
3/31/14 $ 7,878,086     23.10% $ 32,465,254   

Percentage Obligation

Annual 

Ending (ARC) Contributed or Asset

Required Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Contribution
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NOTE 15 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 
 

At March 31, 2017, the date of the most recent actuarial report, membership consisted of:  
 

Classification of Participants

Active Members 307         

Retired Members
Covered under medical and life 131         
Covered for life insurance only  4             

Total Retired Members 135         

Disabled Members
Eligible for medical and life 4             

Total Disabled Members 4             

Spouses of Retired Members with Medical Coverage
Spouses of retired members 86           
Spouses of disabled members -          

Total Spouses of Retired Members 86           

Total 532         

 
Spouses of active members are not included in the above participant counts, but benefits have been valued 
for future eligible spouses and included in the OPEB Obligation.   
 
Funded Status and Funding Progress  
 
As of March 31, 2017, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the OPEB Plan is unfunded.  The actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits was $93,152,418, and the OPEB Plan had no assets, resulting in an unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $93,152,418.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the OPEB Plan) was $21,616,025, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered 
payroll was 431% during the period covered by the actuarial report.  
 
Actuarial valuations on an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends.  Amounts determined regarding 
the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about 
the future.   
 
The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to 
the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.  



MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF WESTMORELAND COUNTY 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 
 

- 54 - 

NOTE 15 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 
 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time 
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan 
members at that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed 
to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
• Discount Rate:  Since the plan has not yet accumulated appreciable assets, the discount rate is the 

estimated long term invest yield on employer assets that are expected to pay for benefits.  This does 
not generally result in a market-consistent present value measurement.   
 

 Prior Valuation Current Valuation 
 

 4.00% 4.00%   
 

• Mortality:    Healthy Lives - The RP-2000 Mortality Table, sex-distinct, separate pre/post 
commencement, fully generational, projected using two-dimensional Scale BB.  Disabled Lives – The 
RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table without projection is used. 
 

• Turnover:  Light turnover (T-1) for all Employees. 
 
• Active Retirement:  5% from ages 55 to 59; 15% from ages 60 to 61; 25% from ages 62 to 64; and 

100% thereafter. 
 
• Inactive Retirement: It is assumed that members who quit and do not retire from active service are not 

eligible for retiree medical or life.  
 

• Disability:  Same as pension valuation 
 

• Marital Status: 80% of male and 50% of female active participants are assumed to have a covered 
spouse at retirement.  The female spouse of a male employee is assumed to be 2 years younger.  The 
male spouse of a female employee is assumed to be 3 years older.  
 

• Participation:  
 

Medical  100% of eligible employees are assumed to elect single member coverage at 
retirement and 100% are assumed to cover their spouse. 

 
Medicare Part B 0% of eligible retirees are assumed to submit future claims to the Authority 

for premium reimbursement. 
 
Life Insurance  100% of eligible employees assumed to participate in the post retirement life 

insurance program.  
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NOTE 15 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued) 

 
•     Trends: Blended rates of future inflation for medical and prescription drug benefits are as follows: 

 
Year Blended Rate

2017-2019 6.5%
2020-2024 6.0%
2025-2035 5.5%
2036-2051 5.0%
2052-2057 4.5%

2058 and later 4.0%

 
*Long-term trends were developed using the Society of Actuaries Long-Term Healthcare Cost Trends 
Resource Model (updated July 2014).  
 
Projected retiree-coverage thresholds for 2018 are shown below.  The amounts include adjustment for 
assumed cost increases in the Federal Employees Health Benefits Plan that are projected to exceed 
55% for the period 2010-2018: 
 

Estimated 2018 limit on self only coverage  $11,850 
Estimated 2018 limit on other than self only coverage $30,950 
Changes in CPI-U  2.7 % 
 

A 1% additional increase is used in 2019, as specified by law.   
 

• Amortization Period:  30 year amortization. 
 

• Amortization Method:  Level Dollar 
 
• Actuarial Cost Method:  Projected Unit Credit 
 
•  
Claims Cost Development and Assumptions 
 
• Starting costs for the expected per member annual claims costs for retirees under age 65 are 

developed based on historical incurred claims paid and enrollment data for both active and retired 
participants.  Data over a 36-month period has been used. 
 
The overall average members per contract are assumed to be 2.1.   
 
This weighted average was then spread to reflect lower expected claims cost at younger ages and 
higher claims cost at older ages using aging factors shown below.  The estimated per capital claims 
cost at age 64 is $19,200. 
 
At age 65 the Freedom Blue PPO annual premium of $4,776 was used without aging factor 
adjustments.   
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NOTE 15 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 
 

•   Aging Factors:  
    

Age Factor

12-14 0.00%
15-19 -1.50%
20-24 5.50%
25-29 5.00%
30-39 2.00%
40-44 3.00%
45-49 4.50%
50-54 4.00%
55-59 4.50%
60-64 4.00%
65-69 3.50%
70-79 3.00%
80-84 2.00%
85-89 1.50%
90-94 1.00%
95-99 0.50%

 
NOTE 16 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

The Authority, in its normal course of business, has been named as a defendant in various lawsuits.  As of 
March 31, 2018, the Authority intends to contest all claims vigorously and is currently unable to evaluate 
the likelihood of potential outcomes.  The Authority has not accrued any contingent liability for these 
claims. 
 

NOTE 17 – GOVERNMENT ACQUISITIONS 
 

On July 25, 2016, the Authority acquired The Hempfield Township Municipal Authority (THTMA) in 
exchange for $5,000,000 up-front cash and a note payable recorded at present value using a 3.28% 
interest rate of $22,462,674.  The Authority will operate and maintain the treatment facility and its 
operations are included in the Authority’s enterprise fund.  The acquisition included substantially all of 
the assets of THTMA, consisting of treatment facilities, distribution system and other equipment.  In 
addition, the Authority assumed liabilities for loans, accounts payable, and accrued expenses.  The 
Authority defeased outstanding bonds of THTMA as part of the acquisition.  The acquisition value of the 
net position acquired was determined to be $27,462,674.   

 
NOTE 18 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  
 

Management performs an assessment of subsequent events for their impact on its financial statements.  
The Authority evaluated subsequent events through the date of this report, which is the date these 
financial statements were available to be issued.  The Authority is not aware of any subsequent events that 
would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. 
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Total pension liability
Service cost $ 1,656,602         $ 1,698,228         $ 1,746,281         
Interest 6,330,707         6,030,445         5,783,166         
Changes of benefit terms -                   -                   -                   
Differences between expected and actual experience 727,121            -                   -                   
Changes in assumptions 40,299              -                   -                   
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (4,314,316)       (4,120,397)       (3,854,643)       

Net change in total pension liability 4,440,413         3,608,276         3,674,804         

Total pension liability—beginning 89,077,775       85,469,499       81,794,695       

Total pension liability—ending (a) $ 93,518,188       $ 89,077,775       $ 85,469,499       

  

Plan fiduciary net position 
Contributions—employer $ 5,865,189         $ 5,079,417         $ 4,723,148         
Contributions—employee -                   -                   -                   
Net investment income 5,719,288         5,988,084         (307,283)          
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (4,314,316)       (4,120,397)       (3,854,643)       

Administrative expense -                   -                   -                   
Other -                   -                   -                   

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 7,270,161         6,947,104         561,222            

Plan fiduciary net position—beginning 54,129,934       47,182,830       46,621,608       

Plan fiduciary net position—ending (b) $ 61,400,095       $ 54,129,934       $ 47,182,830       

 

Net pension liability—ending (a) – (b) $ 32,118,093       $ 34,947,841       $ 38,286,669       

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 65.66% 60.77% 55.20%

Covered-employee payroll $ 18,632,000       $ 19,192,750       $ 19,100,000       

Net pension liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 172.38% 182.09% 200.45%

3/31/18 3/31/17 3/31/16
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Actuarially determined contribution $ 5,865,189   $ 5,854,167   $ 5,708,478   $ 5,604,648   $ 4,530,674   

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contributions 5,865,189   5,079,417   4,723,148   4,635,200   3,829,425   

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -                 $ 774,750      $ 985,330      $ 969,448      $ 701,249      

Covered-employee payroll $ 18,632,000 $ 19,192,750 $ 19,100,000 $ 19,320,678 $ 18,500,260 

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 31.48% 26.47% 24.73% 23.99% 20.70%

Actuarially determined contribution $ 4,100,712   $ 3,235,733   $ 2,121,416   $ 1,821,038   $ 1,749,814   

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contributions 3,947,750   3,235,733   2,121,416   1,821,038   1,749,814   

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 152,962      $ -             $ -             $ -             $ -             

Covered-employee payroll $ 17,669,789 $ 17,118,179 $ 17,501,995 $ 16,793,961 $ 15,833,422 

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 22.34% 18.90% 12.12% 10.84% 11.05%

3/31/09

3/31/18 3/31/17 3/31/16 3/31/15 3/31/14

3/31/13 3/31/12 3/31/11 3/31/10

 
Notes to the Schedule  
 

 Effective January 1, 2007, the salary increase assumption was changed from 4.5% to 3.5% 
 Effective January 1, 2009 

o The mortality assumption was updated from the 1983 GAM table to the RP-2000 table with 
projections through 2007. 

o The salary increase assumption was changed for bargaining employees to reflect steps during the 
first 10 years of employment and after 10 years (immediately for non-bargaining) to better reflect 
bargained increases through the terms of the contract and future expectations.   

o The methodology for calculating the Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA) was changed from the 
moving average appreciation method to five year smoothing of gains/losses.  The resulting asset 
value did not change (limited to 120% of market value prior to election below).   

o The Authority elected to apply temporary corridor limit of 70% to 130% of market value (i.e. 
additional smoothing) as allowed by Act 44 of 2009. 

o An Early Retirement Window implemented in 2008 is first recognized.   
 Effective January 1, 2011: 

o The mortality assumption for active participants was changed to the RP -2000 Non-Annuitant 
Table projected to 2007 by Scale AA.   

o The assumed retirement age (for active participants) was changed from 100% at age 63 to various 
rates beginning at age 55 to better reflect actual and anticipated retirement patterns.   
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Notes to the Schedule (continued) 
 

 Fall 2012:  As a Level 2 Distressed Municipality (as defined in Act 205) the Authority elected the 
“Amortization Contribution Reduction Remedy” whereby they may deposit less than the full Minimum 
Municipal Obligation (MMO) for the years 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016.   

 Effective January 1, 2013:  The mortality assumption was changed to reflect future mortality 
improvements.   

 Effective January 1, 2015: 
o The assumed future mortality improvement was changed from Scale AA to Scale BB2D.   
o The retirement and turnover assumptions were revised to reflect recent and anticipated future 

experience.  The retirement assumption anticipates more retirements at later ages.  The turnover 
assumption was changed from age-based to service-based.   

o The salary increase assumption was changed to reflect base pay rate changes made in the 2012-
2015 Collective Bargaining Agreement and a revision was made to the wage progression 
applicable to bargained employees during the first 10 years of employment.   

 Effective January 1, 2017:  Terminated vested participants are now assumed to begin pension payments at 
their first opportunity to receive an unreduced pension. 
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Total pension liability
Service cost $ -                   $ 16,537              $ 78,724              
Interest 98,537              113,696            96,290              
Changes of benefit terms -                   (315,172)          -                   
Differences between expected and actual experience 181,973            -                   207,621            
Changes of assumptions 60,033              (3,968)              -                   
Transfers -                   -                   96,387              
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (70,171)            (70,171)            (45,282)            

Net change in total pension liability 270,372            (259,078)          433,740            

Total pension liability—beginning 1,826,193         2,085,271         1,651,531         

Total pension liability—ending (a) $ 2,096,565         $ 1,826,193         $ 2,085,271         

  

Plan fiduciary net position 
Contributions—employer $ 56,848              $ 92,660              $ 68,528              
Contributions—PMRS assessment 340                   340                   -                   
Net investment income 47,574              (4,433)              78,994              
Transfers -                   -                   96,387              
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (70,171)            (70,171)            (45,282)            

Administrative expense (340)                 (3,702)              (3,819)              
Other (4,534)              -                   -                   

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 29,717              14,694              194,808            

Plan fiduciary net position—beginning 1,640,911         1,626,217         1,431,409         

Plan fiduciary net position—ending (b) $ 1,670,628         $ 1,640,911         $ 1,626,217         

 

Net pension liability—ending (a) – (b) $ 425,937            $ 185,282            $ 459,054            

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 79.68% 89.85% 77.99%
of the total pension liability 

Covered-employee payroll $ -                   $ 123,480            $ 515,675            

Net pension liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll N/A 150.05% 89.02%

12/31/16* 12/31/15 12/31/14

 
* This date represents the measurement date for the current fiscal year end.  This was the most recently available measurement 
date.  As the plan was frozen as of April 13, 2015, any changes in net pension liability from this measurement date were 
determined to be immaterial to the financial statements of the Authority. 
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Actuarially determined contribution $ 56,041        

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contributions 56,041        

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -             

Covered-employee payroll $ -             

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll N/A

3/31/2018

 
As the plan was frozen at the acquisition date of the City of Jeannette Municipal Authority, there was no payroll 
provided by the Authority in the current year that would be considered covered payroll.   
 
Due to the change in the plan, the Authority delayed payment of any contributions until all plan changes were 
applied in calculating required contributions.  As of March 31, 2017, and March 31, 2016, PMRS had not 
provided the Authority with an updated Actuarially Required Contribution in consideration of the plan being 
frozen as of April 13, 2015.   
 
The 2017 MMO was calculated in consideration of the changes to the plan.  The Authority made this contribution 
during fiscal year ended March 31, 2018. 
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3/31/2017 $ -           $ 93,152,418 $ 93,152,418 0.00% $ 21,616,025 430.94%
3/31/2015 $ -           $ 80,479,237 $ 80,479,237 0.00% $ 20,185,725 398.69%
3/31/2013 $ -           $ 86,050,083 $ 86,050,083 0.00% $ 18,590,012 462.88%
3/31/2011 $ -           $ 76,102,871 $ 76,102,871 0.00% $ 17,353,397 438.55%
3/31/2009 $ -           $ 54,535,564 $ 54,535,564 0.00% $ 16,185,818 336.93%

( b - a )
UAAL as a 

Actuarial Actuarial ( a / b ) ( c ) 

(( b - a ) / c )
( a ) ( b ) Unfunded

Percentage of
Valuation Value of Accrued Liability Funded Covered Covered
Actuarial Actuarial

PayrollDate Plan Assets Liabilities (UAAL) Ratio Payroll

The following actuarial assumptions were revised since the prior valuation: 
 

 Trend rates have been updated to reflect (a) higher expected short-term healthcare cost increases and (b) a 
shortening of the period of time to reach the ultimate assumed trend of 4%.  The accrued liability 
increased by approximately $6.3 million due to this change.   
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Year
Ended

March 31,

2018 $ 9,799,061         25.40%
2017 $ 9,799,061         22.07%
2016 $ 7,324,275         27.89%
2015 $ 7,232,007         24.59%
2014 $ 7,878,086         23.10%
2013 $ 7,553,986         24.09%
2012 $ 7,320,857         15.64%
2011 $ 7,079,951         14.90%

(ARC) Contributed

Annual 
Required

Contribution Percent
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The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial 
valuations at the date indicated.  Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 
 

 Amortization Period 30 year amortization 

 Amortization Method Level Dollar 

 Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit 

 Actuarial Value of Plan Assets The Authority does not accumulate assets in a 
dedicated trust, or an equivalent arrangement, 
for purposes of funding its retiree healthcare 
obligation.  Therefore, the actuarial value of 
plan assets is zero.  

 Type of Entity Single-employer plan:    A plan that covers the 
current and former employees, including 
beneficiaries of only one employer.  

 








